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. Name of the organization: CDC Construction Jeint Stock Company

— Securities code: CCC

Address: LK 18-24, Galaxy 8, Ngan Ha Van Phuc Residential Area, No. 69 To Huu
Street, Ha Dong Ward, Hanoi City.

— Phone number: 024.3943.0888

— Email: info@cdexd.com.vn

2. Content of the discloesure:

CDC Construction Joint Stock Company hereby discloses its 2024 Annual Report attached
to this document.

| 3. This information has been published on the official website of CDC Construction Joint
Stock Company on July 03, 2025 at the following link: https://edexd.com.vn.

We hereby undertake that the disclosed information is true and take full legal responsibility
3 for the content of the information disclosed.
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CDC CONSTRUCTION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF YIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom — Happiness
No: 02/BC-CDC Ha Noi, July 3¢ 2025
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
Bl - State Securities Commission of Vietnam

- HoChiMinh Stock Exchange

I. General information

1. General information r/f

- Trading name: CDC CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK COMPANY (
\\

- Business Registration Certificate No.: 0105283073 The business was first licensed by the Hanoi N

Department of Planning and Investment on April 27, 2011, and its license was amended for the 16th
time on June 12, 2024.

- Charter capital: 402.500.000.000 VND.

- Address: LK 18-24, Galaxy 8, Ngan Ha Van Phuc Residential Area, No. 69 To Huu Street, Ha
Dong Ward (formerly Van Phuc Ward, Ha Dong District), Hanoi City

- Telephone: (84-24) 3943 0888

- Fax:

- Website: cdexd.com.vn

- Securities code (if any): CCC

- Establishment and development process:

CDC Construction Joint Stock Company was formerly known as Hanoi Construction Consulting
and Supervision Design Joint Stock Company, established on April 27, 2011. Throughout its
development process, the Company has made significant advancements and achieved notable

accomplishments:

2011 On April 27, 2011, Hanoi Construction Consulting and Supervision Design Joint
Stock Company was established under Business Registration Certificate No.
0105283073 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Hanoi City.

In its early stages, the Company primarily focused on stabilizing the workplace,
exploring new markets, and continuing to develop its personnel team to build and
reinforce its capacity for sustainable growth,




2012-2016

Hanoi Construction Consulting and Supervision Design Joint Stock Company has
carried out design consultancy, construction supervision, and participated in the
construction of numerous projects in various roles, including Design Consultant,
Construction Supervisor, Subcontractor, and Main Contractor.

With a team of well-trained staff and a modern, well-equipped machinery fleet, the
Company has been actively involved in design consultancy, construction
supervision, and direct construction of many high-rise and low-rise buildings.
These projects have involved contract values ranging from VND 50 billion to VND
500 billion, encompassing various highly technical and aesthetically demanding
disciplines such as pile foundation, foundation, basement, superstructure,
architectural design,  mechanical-electrical  systems, and  external
infrastructure. These projects are located in new urban areas with comprehensive
planning and architecture aligned with international standards, as well as in large
cities” high-rise buildings, villa complexes, and mixed-use developments including
office buildings, hotels, and resorts. Over time, the Company has gradually
established itself as one of the reputable contractors in Hanoi and the northern
provinces.

2017

The Hanoi Construction Consulting and Supervision Design Joint Stock Company
officially transitioned and expanded its operational model, changing its name to
CDC Hanoi Joint Stock Company. Additionally, on December 18, 2017, CDC was
awarded Construction Capacity Certificate No. BXD-00006583 by the Department
of Construction Operations Management under the Ministry of Construction. This
certification authorizes the company's activities in the following areas:

(1) Class I civil construction;
(11) Class 1I construction supervision;
(ii1) Design and appraisal of design consultancy for Class 11 projects.

Through this transformation, CDC has continuously strived for growth and
development within the market economy. The company boldly reformed its
management mechanism, clearly defined development objectives, expanded its
operational fields, and diversified its business activities. CDC has evolved from a
small-scale enterprise into a multi-sector company, leveraging existing materials,
machinery, equipment, and labor force. The company proactively utilized financial
leverage in its business aperations strengthened jaint ventures and narfnerchine
expanded production, and actively engaged in sourcing new projects and business
opportunities.

2018-2019

Building upon accumulated experience and capabilities in recent years, alongside
ongoing development and corporate innovation, this foundation will support the
formation of a strong, multi-sector company that applics advanced management
sciences of the modem era. In an era where the knowledge economy has become
essential for global development, CDC is in a rapid growth phase. These
achievements reflect the accumulated expertise and technical proficiency over
many years, as well as the dedication and effort of all CDC members.

The primary focus of CDC’s development during this period is to establish itself as
one of the leading and most reputable general contractors in the construction
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industry. CDC has successfully executed numerous projects across various northern
provinces such as Hai Phong, Hanoi, Hai Duong, Thai Binh, and others. These
projects have consistently ensured safety, quality, and adherence to schedule,
earning high evaluations and trust from clients and partners.

Technically, CDC has made significant advances by completing many challenging
construction items and achieving initial notable accomplishments in these complex
works

2019-2022

This period marks a milestone highlighting record-breaking growth in revenue and
profits over more than 12 years of operation, with the growth rate in 2021 reaching
175% compared to 2019. CDC has undertaken numerous large-scale EPC confracts,
signing agreements with new investors for major projects valued at over VND
1,000 billion.

In 2021, CDC completed and put into operation a new office building. The new
headquarters meets the company’s facility and operational space requirements,
providing CDC with a renewed position in the market. Simultaneously, the
Company established a representative office in Ho Chi Minh City, making a
strategic breakthrough in the southern market.

CDC has been honored with many prestigious awards in Vietnam, including: Top
500 Fastest Growing Enterprises in Vietnam; Top 500 Largest Enterprises in
Vietnam; Top 10 Prestigious Vietnamese Brands; and various Certificates of Merit
for excellent tax compliance and achievements in the management and
implementation of social insurance and health insurance policies.

With the goal of “Traveling Together” and partnering for sustainable growth toward
new successes, CDC, along with its partners, clients, employees, and affiliated
companies, will share expertise, knowledge, and innovative techniques.
Furthermore, CDC is actively entering into long-term strategic cooperation
agreements with partners such as investors, banks, and clients to create sustainable
values and opportunities for market expansion, stability, and business development.
These are crucial factors for the company’s sustainable development goals in the
future.

On March 30, 2022, CDC Hanoi Joint Stock Company officially changed its name
to CDC Construction Joint Stock Company.

2023

On December 4, 2023, the Company received Official Letter No. 8528/UBCK-
GSDC from the State Securities Commission, regarding the registration of the
Company as a public company.

2024

On January 12, 2024, CDC Construction Joint Stock Company’s shares were
officially allocated the stock code CCC, pursunant to Certificate of Securities

Registration No. 01/2024/GCNCP-VSDC issued by the Vietnam Securities
Depository.

On April 4, 2024, the Company was granted the Certificate of Registration for
Additional Public Offering of Shares No. 28/GCN-UBCK by the State Securities

Commission. This share offering was conducted in accordance with the plan
approved by the Company's General Meeting of Shareholders in Resolution No.
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12/2023/NQ-DHBCD dated December 27, 2023.

The offering concluded on May 28, 2024. On June 12, 2024, Hanoi Department of
Planning and Investment issued the Business Registration Certificate No.
0105283073, with the 16th amendment on June 12, 2024, recording the charter
capital at VND 402,500,000,000.

On July 18, 2024, Hanoi Stock Exchange issued Decision No. 826/QBD-SGDHN
approving the registration of CDC Construction Joint Stock Company's shares for
trading on UPCoM.

The first trading day of CCC shares on UPCoM was July 30, 2024, with an initial
price of VND 13,500 per share.

In 2024, CDC was ranked among Vieinam’s Top 10 Contractors by BCI Central
(BCI Asia Top 10 Contractors 2024). This award is based on the total value of
reinforcement work on projects under construction during the two years from
January 1, 2022, to December 31, 2023, with adjustiments for projects registered
with green certificates. The recognition reflects CDC’s persistent cfforts,
professionalism, reputation, and capacity, illustrating the company’s increasing
brand recognition and stature within the industry.

2025

On March 20, 2025, CDC Construction Joint Stock Company was approved for
listing on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (HOSE) according to Decision
No. 145/QB-SGDHCM issued on the same date.

- Other events: None.

2. Business lines and locations of the business:

- Business lines:

Business Code

Business Activity Name

4322

Installation of water supply, drainage, heating, and air conditioning systems

4329 Other construction installation activities

4330 Finishing of building construction

4390 Other specialized construction activities

4603 Whoiesale of construction materials and mstallation equipment
6810 Real estate trading, land use rights owned or leased

7110 Architectural and related engineering éonsulting activities
7730 Rental of machinery, equipment, and tangible goods without operators
3320 Installation of industrial machinery and equipment

4101 (Main) Construction of residential buildings

4102 Construction of non-residential buildings

4222 Construction of water supply and drainage systems

4229 Construction of other public utility works
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Business Code | Business Activity Name

4293 Construction of processing and manufacturing facilities
4299 Construction of other civil engineering projects

4311 Demolition

4312 Site preparation

4321 Installation of electrical systems

- Location of business: Nationwide
3. Information about governance model, business organization and managerial apparatus

- Governance model: General Meeting of Shareholders, Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors,

General Director

- Management structure - update to 01/04/2025
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- Subsidiaries, associated companies:

Associated Company: SIL LEASING Joint Stock Company (formerly: CDCLEASING Investment
Joint Stock Company)

Address : House during the Cho Ap Don project, Yen Trung Village, Yen Phong District, Bic Ninh

Province

Main Business Sector : Real estate trading

Charter Capital:: 266.000.000.000 VND

CDC Ownership Ratio: 6.650.000 shares, equivalent to 25% of the total shares of SIL. LEASING
4. Development orientations

CDC Construction Joint Stock Company has successfully positioned itself as a reputable general
contractor in the construction industry, distinguished by a dedicated and responsible team, modern
construction technology, and an advanced management system. As a general contractor, CDC is

committed to:
— Enhancing the quality of life and development opportunities for its workforce

— Delivering customer satisfaction through quality and cost optimization for clients (project

owners)

— Contributing sustainable value-added products to the community and the development of the

country

Within the next three years, the Company aims to rank among the Top 10 construction enterprises in

Vietnam

In alignment with this strategic direction, although the Company registered its trademark “CDC Ha
Noi” with the National Office of Intellectual Property in 2019, it has since rebranded with a new
corporate identity: “CDC Construction”. The brand identity system has been standardized and
synchronized, promoting professionalism and trust. Under the message (Walking Together), CDC
commits to building a sustainable, equitable, and mutually beneficial cooperative environment for

all partners and clients.

CDC's reputation has been affirmed through numerous projects across the country and recognized
by several prestigious national awards, including: Top 09 out of 500 fastest-growing enterprises in
Vietnam in 2021; Top 50 Outstanding Growth Enterprises in Vietnam in 2022 (FAST500 — Vietnam
| Report); Top 500 Largest Private Enterprises in Vietnam in 2021 (VNR500 — Vietnam Report); Tep
10 Most Famous Brands in Vietnam in 2021; Certificate of Merit for good compliance with tax
regulations in 2020 (Hanoi Tax Department); Certificate of Merit for excellent performance in
implementing social and health insurance policies for the 2018-2019 period (Vietnam Social
6



Security); Recognized by BCI Central as one of BCI Asia’s Top 10 Contractors in Vietnam for
2024.

To elevate the brand into the top tier of general contractors in Vietnam, CDC Construction Joint
Stock Company has adopted a methodical approach, including: Market segmentation; Target
audience research and analysis; Competitive brand analysis; Emphasizing the value and identity of

the “CDC Construction™ brand; Developing a unique brand personality.

Currently, CDC’s top strategic priority for brand development is the application of modern
technology in construction solutions. Simultaneously, the Company is focused on building a high-
quality workforce and strengthening corporate culture. These are core elements to reinforcing the
brand’s value and ensuring that the “CDC Construction” name maintains its unique voice amidst the

numerous general contractors operating in Vietnam.
5. Risks:
5.1 Competition risks within the industry

Along with the growth of the real estate market over the past decade, the civil construction sector
has experienced significant maturity and the mark of many companies such as Coteccons
Construction Joint Stock Company (CTD), Hoa Binh Construction Group (HBC), Newtecons
Investment Construction Joint Stock Company, Ricons Investment Construction Joint Stock
Company, Vietnam Export-Import and Construction Joint Stock Company (Vinaconex), Central
Construction Joint Stock Company, Delta Construction Group, An Phong Construction Joint Stock
Company, and foreign brands like China Harbour Engineering Company Limited, IC Holding
Group, Lotte E&C Group, and Posco E&C Group. The increasing number of contractors has
fragmented the market share, leading to more intense competition within the industry. Currently,
competition mainly focuses on construction unit prices, which results in low profit margins
compared to other sectors in Vietnam. These factors directly impact the company's ability to win
bids for projects, increase revenue, and affect project profitability due to namower gross profit
margins. In response, the company has been focusing on projects that match its capacity and

financial capability, along with strict cost control to boost profit margins.
5.2 Risks from adverse developments in the real estate market

The company operates in a sector heavily dependent on the real estate market since real estate
developers are the main clients. Market demand is influenced by various factors including supply,
liguidity, product development trends, and negative fluctuations such as decreased demand or price
volatility of real estate. Adverse developments in the real estate market may lead to fewer
construction projects, including those for CDC. thus reducing revenues. When project numbers
decline, competition intensifies, which may force the company to lower bids to secure projects,

reducing profit margins. Additionally, the construction industry often experiences longer receivable
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days due to the extended project timelines and phased payments based on progress. Market
fluctuations can negatively impact the finances of clients, causing higher bad debts and cash flow
constraints.

According to the "Circular 25/TC-BXD" dated January 24, 2025, from the Ministry of Construction
regarding the third quarter and full-year 2024 real estate report, in 2023, the country issued about 79
new real estate projects (approximately 38,345 units), completed 69 projects (about 23,041 units),
and had 204 projects eligible for future housing sales.

In 2024, real estate transactions became more active, especially in the latter half of the year with
new policy implementations. Investors responded quickly, which helped boost market sentiment.
Lower and stable interest rates, along with favorable selling policies, contributed to a noticeable

increase in real estate transactions.

It is evident that the real estate market ended 2024 with a positive recovery, thanks to significant
progress in legal framework enhancements and close guidance from the Party, State, and
Government. Looking ahead to 2025, factors such as sustained low-interest rates supporting capital
raising and buyers, along with policy and legal reforms beginning fo take effect, are expected to

further stimulate market sentiment and facilitate a recovery.

With the positive momentum in the real estate market, construction activity levels are also expected
to increase. Reputable companies with strong capacity and financial strength, having overcome

recent challenges, are positioned well for future project negotiations and execution.
5.3 Raw materials input risks

Since the company mainly operates in construction, the prices of building materials constitute a
significant portion of its total input costs. The prices of materials such as sand, gravel, cement, steel,
and fuel are generally rising, directly impacting the company’s operational results. Fluctuations in
material prices influence the cost of goods sold for each project, significantly affecting overall
performance. To mitigate these risks, the company actively negotiates and signs direct contracts

with suppliers, allowing better control over input costs and reducing price volatility.
5.4 Accounts receivable collection risks

Debt collection in construction companies often depends on the project acceptance schedule from
clients. If clients lack large cash flows from project sales or face difficulties accessing credit funds,
payments. to contractors can be delayed. Moreover, intense competition among contractors gives
clients leverage to negotiate more favorable contractual and payment terms. Given the challenging
real estate market and limited disbursements from banks to real estate companies in 2023-2024,

there is significant pressure on the company to establish allowances for doubtful debts. Difficulties



in debt recovery can severely impact the financial position and liquidity, as most contractors rely on

loans to finance ongoing construction activities.
I1. Operations in the Year
1. Situation of production and business operations

- Results of business operations in the year:

NO. INDICATOR NAME UNIT ACTUAL 2024
I ie;j;‘;i“;‘fe ;:Ei:‘e Shimmnma VND 2.189.074.369.779
2 | Profit Before Tax ‘ VND 53.401.528.685
3 | Profit After Tax VND 42.288.498.003
4 | Total Assets VND 2.083.852.095.276
5 | Owner’s Equity VND 588.063.803.948
6 | Payment to State Budget VND 1715 1.153,138

Performance Compared to the Plan:

In 2024, the Company’s net revenue from sale of goods and provision of services reached
VND 2,189 billion, achieving 90.20% of the annual target.

Revenue in 2024 was 120.72% compared to that of 2023. Profit after tax in 2024 reached
146.05% compared to that of 2023

2. Organization and Human resource

- List of the Board of Management:

- e— D—

SHARES HELD OWNERSHIP

- NO- NAME PRRITIOR . PROPORTION RATIO
g - OF OWNERSHIP |
1 | Mrs. Dang Thanh Trang = Board of Directors Member 3.220.000 | 8,0%
.+ ... andGenealDirector . .
2 | Mr.MaiDinhChit  Deputy General Director | .805.000 2,0%
- Mr. Nguyén Khic ~ Deputy General Director 805.000 2.0%
C iThph . S
4 Mr.NguyénVanLinh  Deputy General Director A =
5 Mr.Nguyén HiuBing _Deputy General Director - -
| 6 _ Mrs. Nguyén Thi Thiy :  Chief Accountant | 299.999 0,7%
: © 7 Mr.Nguyén VinPire | Chief Corporate Governance | - % I
| Officer L )
E S N 5 |



Summary of the biographies of the executive committee members (Updated as of March 31, 2025):
*Mrs. Pang Thanh Trang - Board of Directors Member and General Director

- Date of Birth: 20/12/1983 Nationality: Viet Nam

- Professional Qualification: Master of Economics, Bachelor of Economics

- Positions Held at the Listed Organization

2018 -07/2019  : Chief Accountant at Hanoi CDC Joint Stock Company (now CDC
Construction Joint Stock Company)

7/2019 — 06/2024 : Deputy General Director

2021 — Present : Member of the Board of Directors. term 2021-2026
06/2024 — ¢ General Director
Present

- Positions Held at Other Organizations

2009 —2012 :  Chief Accountant at Truong Loc Construction and Trading Joint Stock
Company
2013 -2017 :  Deputy Head of Finance and Accounting Department at Ecoba Vietnam

Joint Stock Company

2023 — present : Chair of the Board of Directors and General Director at CDC Nha Trang
Joint Stock Company

2023 — present : General Director at CDC Holding Joint Stock Company

2024 — present : Chair of the Board of Directors at CDCLEASING Investment Joint
Stock Company

* Mr. Mai Pinh Chéit - Deputy General Director
- Date of Birth: 05/01/1986 Nationality/ Nationality: Viet Nam
- Professional Qualification: Master’s Degree in Construction Management

- Positions Held at the Listed Organization

2019 — +  Deputy General Director
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present

Positions Held at Other Organizations/Positions Held at Other Organizations:

2009 —2013

2013 -2019

02/2024 —
Present

Deputy Site Manager, Hoa Binh Construction Group Joint Stock Company

Head of Construction Management Department, Ecoba Vietnam Joint Stock
Company

Member of the Board of Directors, CDC Mechanical and Electrical Joint
Stock Company

* Mr. Nguyén Khic Thinh - Deputy General Director

Date of Birth/ Date of birth: 20/08/1981 Nationality/Nationality: Viet Nam

Professional Qualification: Civil Engineer

Positions Held at the Listed Organization:

2015 - 2017
2017 - 2022
2022 —
Present

Site Commander
Team Director

Deputy General Director

Positions Held at Other Organizations:

2004 — 2008

2008 —2011

20112015

02/2024 -

Present

Technical Officer, No. 4 Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company

Chief Site Manager, No. 4 Investment and Construction Joint Stock

Company
Deputy Director, No. 9 Construction Joint Stock Company

Member of the Board of Directors, CDC Mechanical and Electrical Joint
Stock Company

* Mr. Nguyén Viin Linh - Deputy General Director

Date of Birth: 06/11/1980 Nationality: Viet Nam

Professional Qualification: Civil Engineer

Positions Held at the Listed Organization:
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07/2024 — Present

Deputy General Director

Positions Held at Other Organizations:

2003 — 2007

2007 — 2009

2009 — 2011

2011 -2012

2012 -2015

2015-2019

2019 -2023

2023 - 06/2024

Technical Officer, Project Leader — Water and Power Installation and

Construction Joint Stock Company

Specialist, Deputy Head of Department — Vietnam Oil and Gas Power
Corporation (PV Power)

Chief Site Manager — Vietnam Oil and Gas Real Estate Joint Stock
Company

Chief Site Manager — No. 1 Construction Joint Stock Company
Chief Site Manager — TSQ TECHCO Joint Stock Company
Deputy General Director — TSQ TECHCO Joint Stock Company

Deputy General Director — The Son Investment and Construction

Joint Stock Company

Deputy General Director — SAMCONS Vietnam Investment and

Construction Joint Stock Company

* Mr. Nguyén Hiru Bing - Deputy General Director

Date of Birth: 30/03/1983 Nationality: Viet Nam

Professional Qualification: Construction and Industrial Civil Engineer

Positions Held at the Listed Organization:

09/2024 =
Present

Deputy General Director

Positions Held at Other Organizations:

2007 -2010

2011 —-2021

Director — A.Modern Architectural Design Consulting Joint

Stock Company

China State Construction Engineering Corporation (CSCEC)

Chief Architect/QA/QC Director/Technical Director/SWAT
12



Leader/Deputy Project Director/Project  Director/Northemn
Regional Marketing Director

2022 - 7/2024 . Director of Quang Ninh Area Project Management Unit — BIM
Group

11/2024 — Present : General Director — CDCLeasing Investment Joint Stock
Company

* Mrs. Nguyén Thi Thity — Chief Accountant

Date of Birth: 22/02/1979 Nationality: Viet Nam
Professional Qualification: Bachelor of Accounting

Positions Held at the Listed Organization:
2019 — Present : Chief Accountant

Positions Held at Other Organizations:

2003 - 2009 . Chief Accountant — An Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock
Company

2009 - 2015 :  Chief Accountant — Truong Loc Construction and Trading Joint Stock
Company

2015 -2019 :  Chief Accountant — VINLAND [nvestment and Construction Joint Stock
Company

* Mr, Nguyén Vin Dirc - Person in charge of Corporate Governance

Date of Birth: 02/01/1998 Nationality: Viet Nam
Professional Qualification: Bachelor of Law

Positions Held at the Listed Organization:

04/2024 — ¢ Person in charge of Corporate Governance

Present
Positions Held at Other Organizations:

11/2019 — : Legal Specialist — Long Phan PMT Law Company Limited
9/2020
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9/2020 - 02/2023 : Executive Assistant to the Director — Vietnam Liquefied Gas Company
Limited (VT GAS)

02/2023 - : Legal Officer — Bac A Commercial Joint Stock Bank
03/2024
- Changes in the Board of Management:

+ On June 3, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company appointed Mr. Trin Vin Trudng, a
member of the Board of Directors, to the position of Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, and
Ms. Dang Thanh Trang, also a member of the Board of Directors, to the position of General Director
of the Company.

+ During the 2024 financial year, the executive management appointed Mr. Nguyén Vin Linh and

Mr. Neuyén Hiru Bing to the positions of Deputy General Directors of the Company.
- Number of staffs. Brief information and changes on the employee s policies.

As of March 31, 2025

- Total number of officers and employees: 318

» Key Changes in Labor Policies:

- Adjustments to the income structure of the project division, with a focus on prioritizing and
increasing compensation for individuals with strong capabilities, high development potential, and

significant contributions to the transformation and operation of the new organizational model.

- Performance management based on KPls continues to be improved, aiming to enhance

transparency, objectivity, and effectiveness in the performance evaluation process.
3. Investment activities, project implementation
a) Major investments.

Financial Investments

31/03/2025 01/04/2024
VND VND
Piu tu ngin han (Short-term) 53.000.000.000 204.186.696.521
Tién giri ¢6 k¥ han (Depostt) 53.000.000.000  64.000.000.000
Trai phiéu (Bond) - 140.186.696.521
Diu tw dai han (Long-term) 30.000.000.000  30.000.000.000
Tréi phiéu (Bond) 30.000.000.000  30.000.000.000
Cdng (Total) 83.000.000.000 234.186.696.521
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(*) These are term deposits with maturities ranging from 6 to 12 months at commercial banks,
bearing interest rates from 2.9% to 4.9% per annum. The entire balance of these deposit contracts is
pledged as collateral for bank loans.

(**) The interest rates of bond investments are calculated as: reference interest rate + a margin of

1.0% to 1.3% per annum. The long-term bond investments are pledged as collateral for bank loans.

b) Subsidiaries, associated companies:

31/03/2025 01/04/2024
Gia gbe Du phong Gi4 gbe Dw phong
(Historical (Provission) (Historical (Provission)
¢ost) cost)
VND VND VND VND

Congty ¢b phan Pau tr CDCLeasing (4 66.500.000.000 - - “
doi tén thanh Céng ty ¢d phén SIL

Leasing)

CDC Leassing Invesstment JSC

(renamed to SIL Leasing Joint Stock

Company)

Cong (Total) 66.500.000.000 - - -

The Company contributed capital to CDCLeasing Investment Joint Stock Company in the amount of
VND 66,500,000,000, equivalent to 6,650,000 shares, representing 25% of the charter capital of the
said company. CDCLeasing Investment Joint Stock Company was established on November 15,

2024, and operates in the fields of real estate business, warehouse, factory, and office leasing.
4. Financial situation
Financial situation

Unit: VND billion.

Indicators 2023 2024 % change
Total asset 1.718,66 2.083,85 21,25%
Net revernue 1.813,31 2.189,07 20,72%
Profit from business activilies 36,98 52,94 43,17%
Other profits -0.35 0,46 230,58%
Profit before tax 36,62 53,40 45.81%
Profit afier tax 28,96 42,29 46,05%
Payout ratio 1% of the par | 2% of the par 100%
value of shares value of
shares

b) Major financial indicators:
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Indicators 2023 2024 Note

1. Solvency ratio
+ Current ratio: 1,4 153
(Short term Assel/Short term debi)
Quick ratio:

Short term Assef - Inventories 0.9 0,9

Shovt term Debt

2. capital structure Ratio
+ (Debt/Total assets ratio) 0,7 0,7
+ (Debt/Owner's Equity ratio) 2,6 2.6

3. Operation capability Ratio
+ Inventory turnover: 34 3.9

(Cost of goods sold/Average inventory)
+ Total asset turnover:

(Net revenue/ Average Total Assets) 1,0 1.2

4. Profitability

+ (profit afier tax/ -Ner revenue Ratio) 1,6% 1,9%
+ (profit afier tax/ (otal capital Ratio) 6,1% 7.9%
+ (profit after tax/ Total assels Ratio) 1,6% 2,2%
+ (Profit from business activities/ Net 2,0% 1,4%

revenue Ratio)

5. Shareholders structure, change in the owner's equity.
a) Shares:

As of March 31, 2025, the total number of outstanding shares of the Company is 40,250,000 shares,

all of which are common shares. Among them, 134,402 shares are subject to transfer restrictions.

b) Shareholders structure:

Unit: million VND
According io the shareholder list provided by VSDC on April 10, 2023

SHAREHOLDER
STRUCTURE
(*)

it SHAREHOLDER Number of Ownership Number of
; CATEGORY Shares Ratio Shareholders
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Organization | Individual
I State Shareholders
Founding Sharcholders /
FDI Sharcholders
2 - Domesiic
- Foreign
Major Shareholders 30.023.000 74.59% G 1 5
3 | - Domestic 30.023.000 74,59% 6 1 5
- Foreign
Company Trade Union
4 - Domestic
- Foreign
5 Treasury Shares
6 | Preferred Shareholders
Other Shareholders: 10.227.000 25.41% 132 - 132
T - Domestic 10.227.000 25,41% 132 i 132
- Foreign
TOTAL 40.250.000 100,00% 138 1 137
S il 40.250.000 100,00% | 138 1 137
- Domestic
- Foreign
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¢) Change in the owner's equity:

CDC Construction Joint Stock Company was established on April 27, 2011, by three founding
shareholders with a registered charter capital of VND 5.000.000.000 (Five billion Vietnamese
Dong), equivalent to 500.000 shares. After more than 13 years of operation, the Company has
conducted several capital increases, raising its current charter capital to VND 402.500.000.000
(Four hundred two billion five hundred million Vietnamese Dong), equivalent to 40.250.000 shares.

Charter Capital Increase History of CDC Construction Joint Stock Company
Unit: million VND
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d) Transaction of treasury stocks: none.

e) Other securilies: none.

6. Environment-Social-Governance (ESG) Report of the Company
6.1. Environmental Impact:

As a construction enterprise, CDC recognizes that alongside contributing to economic
development, construction activities also impact the environment. Specifically, companies in this
sector consume signhificant amounts of materials and emit large volumes of CO-, a key driver of
greenhouse effects. To ensure our operations do not harm the environment, CDC prioritizes
environmental protection measures and employs advanced techmologies in production to

minimize environmental impacts.
6.2. Management of raw materials:

CDC consistently focuses on selecting appropriate materials and construction technologies
tailored to each project to minimize environmental impact. The company adopts many
innovative technologies in foundation design, underground works, landslide prevention, and

infrastructure development to promote sustainable construction practices.
6.3, Energy consumption:

Construction is one of the industries with the highest energy consumption throughout the entire
lifecycle of a project. Therefore, CDC emphasizes energy-saving practices and maximizes the

use of natural energy sources in ongoing projects.

At the office, energy conservation measures are also effectively implemented. The company
encourages staff’ to proactively save energy by shulling down computers and unnecessary
¢lectrical devices when not in use. These small actions help foster a culture of environmental

awareness across the entire organization.

6.4. Water consumption (water consumption of business activities in the year)
Water ic a limited resonrce vital for life and eccential far anetainahle devalanment. Tharafore in
its operations and business activities, CDC promotes a strong ethos of avoiding water waste,

conserving water, and recycling it whenever possible. This spirit is embraced and supported by
all company employees, fostering a culture of responsible water use throughout the organization.

6.5. Compliance with the law on environmental protection:

a) Number of times the company is fined for failing to comply with laws and regulations on

environment: None.

b) The total amount to be fined for failing to comply with laws and regulations on the

environment: None.
6.6. Policies related to employees

a)} Number of employees, average wages of workers.



As of March 31, 2025

- Total number of officers and employees: 318

Of which:
Breakdown of Employees by Education Level Number of Employees
Postgraduate (above university level) 9
University degree or equivalent 263
College degree or equivalent 35
Intermediate vocational training or equivalent 6
Skilled workers and high school graduates 5

- The average personnel cost per employee (or average income per employee) as of March 31,
2025, was VND 22,245,913.

b) Labor policies to ensure health, safety and welfare of workers.
An toan lao ddng & Site khoe nghé nghiép/Occupational Safety & Health (OSH):

— Regular safety and fire prevention training provided for 100% of employees.

Personal protective equipment (PPE) fully provided for all site and factory employees.

— Risk assessments and regular workplace safety inspections conducted in accordance with 1SO

standards.
— First-aid kits available at all major workplaces.
Healthcare:
— Annual health check-ups for all employees.
— Sick leave, maternity leave, and annual leave policies fully comply with the Labor Code.
— Regular mosquito control spraying in the working environment.
Employee Benefits:

— Bonuses on holidays, Tet (Lunar New Year), birthdays, Mid-Autumn Festival gifts, and other

special occasions.
— Company trips, team building, and labor union activities to promote employee engagement.

— A friendly, equitable working environment that respects diversity and ensures non-

discrimination
¢) Employee Iraining
The average number of training hours per year, according to the staff and classified siaff

+ Average Annual Training Hours per Employee and by Staff Category:
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Company-wide: 60 hours/person/yecar

Employee Category:

+ Office Staff: 50—60 hours/year/person

+ Technical/On-site/Production Staff: 40 hours/year/person (incl. safety, operations)
+ Middle and Senior Management: 50~70 hours/year/person

- The skills development and continuous learning program to support workers employment and

career development.

The Company continues to focus on human resource development to build a highly skilled
workforce capable of quickly adapting to job requirements in the context of digital

transformation and market expansion. Key activities in 2024 include :

— Enhancing internal training programs, especially in technical and project implementation
departments, to update technological knowledge and strengthen the core team's professional
capacity.

— Occupational safety and fire prevention training.

— Professional skills training through online/offline courses to improve technical proficiency.

— Training on interdepartmental operational procedures.

— Training aligned with competency frameworks based on job positions/career paths, linked to

mdividual development plans.

— Implementing training sponsorship policies to encourage employees to pursue, sit for, and
obtain valuable international certifications that support job performance and long-term career

development.

— Focusing on developing successor teams and young managers through job rotation programs
and roadmap-based managerial appointments.

These effaorte contribnte 10 a enhid foundatinon far a enctainahle himan recaneea dovelnnmant
Lhege ellorts contrbite 1y a sehd Toundatan Tor a sugiainable Rutndh fedoires developinstit

strategy, while also enhancing the Company’s competitiveness in the technology and systems

integration sector.
6.7. Report on responsibility for local community.

In 2024, CDC actively engaged in community activities. Notably, in response to Typhoon Yagi,
which caused significant damage to northern provinces, a delegation representing CDC traveled
to Lang Nu village (Phic Khanh Commune, Béao Yén District, Lao Cai Provinee). This is one of
the severely affected areas in the North, hit hard by the devastating flash floods caused by
Typhoon Yagi. The purpose was to share in the community’s loss, provide support to individual
households, and assist in early recovery and stabilization of their lives.
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6.8. Report on green capital market activities under the guidance of the sse.

Currently, CDC has not yet initiated green capital Raising. The company is evaluating the

market potential of this segment {o implement and deploy it soon in the near future.

II1. The Board of Management reports and assesses the Company’s situation through every
facet)

1. Assessment of operating results

- General analysis of company's operations against the previous operaling targets and results.

NO. INDICATOR NAME UNIT ACTUAL 2024
2 Profit Before Tax VND 53.401.528.685
3 Profit After Tax VND 42.288.498.003
4 Total Assets VND 2.083.852.095.276
5 Owner’s Equity VND 588.063.803.948
6 Payment to State Budget VND 17.151.153.738

In 2024, the Company's business performance achieved 90% of the planned target. The
underperformance in meeting the 2024 business plan is assessed to be due to the general
difficulties faced by both the global and domestic economies. In addition, the Company is
making continuous efforts to secure additional sources of work and new projects, with the aim of

boosting revenue growth in the coming years.
- The Company's achievements.

On May 28, 2024, the Company successfully completed the offering of all 5,250,000 shares and
finalized the charter capital increase procedures on June 12, 2024. The post-offering charter
capital reached VND 402.5 billion, thereby enhancing the Company’s financial capacity. At the
same time, the Board of Directors instructed the Executive Board to complete the registration of
the Company as a public company and to list CDC shares for trading on the UpCOM market
from July 2024. This was a critical preparatory step for the Company to qualify for listing on a

centralized stock exchange.

As a result, on March 20, 2025, CDC Construction Joint Stock Company was approved by the
Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange for share listing pursuant to Decision No. 145/QD-
SGDHCM.

In addition, 2024 marked a year of outstanding achievements for CDC Construction Joint Stock
Company across various operational aspects, contributing to the enhancement of the Company’s
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brand reputation and market position within the construction industry. Below are some key
achievements and honors that CDC attained during the year:

Achieving high growth targets: With after-tax profit for the year reaching VND 42.29 billion, a
46% increase compared to 2023, CDC had a successful year in terms of business performance.
The strong profit growth reflects the Company’s significant efforts to optimize costs and
improve efficiency amidst the challenging construction market. This result exceeded the planned
profit target and laid the foundation for enhancing corporate value and sustainable dividend
policies in the future

Recognition in prestigious business rankings: In 2024, CDC made its debut in the VNRS00 —
Top 500 Largest Enterprises in Vietnam and FAST500 — Top 500 Fastest Growing Enterprises in
Vietnam. According to Vietnam Report, CDC was ranked 335th out of 500 largest enterprises
(VNR500) and was listed among the fastest-growing private enterprises. This is a well-deserved
acknowledgment of the Company’s efforts to expand its scale and increase revenue in recent
years. The VNR500 and FASTS500 honors help solidify CDC’s brand reputation in the

Vietnamese market.

BCI Asia Awards 2024 — Top 10 Contractors in Vietnam: CDC was honored to be selected by
BCI Asia as one of the Top 10 Contractors in Vietnam for 2024. This prestigious award
recognizes leading and reputable contractors who have made significant contributions to the
construction industry. CDC’s inclusion in the Top 10 demonstrates the Company’s superior
competitiveness, particularly in its role as general contractor for major projects across the
country. This is both a source of pride and a motivation for the Company to maintain and elevate

its position in the industry.

Completion of quality, environmental, and safety management certifications: In 2024, the
Company was awarded the ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management System certification
and the ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health & Safety Management System certification.
Previously, CDC also successfully maintained the ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System.
Attaining these key international certifications reflects CDC’s commitment to service quality,
labor safety, and environmental responsibility. These achievements are the result of years of
efforts to improve management systems, affirming that the Company operates under advanced
governance standards. The ISO 14001 and 45001 certifications are especially meaningful in the
construction industry, enhancing CDC’s image as a professional contractor focused on

sustainable and safe development.

Other achievements and recognitions: In addition to the above highlights, CDC achieved several
commendable results in 2024: exceeding the schedule for key projects and receiving high
evaluations from major investors; continuously improving the working environment to attract
and retain talent; and actively participating in community and charitable activities, demonstrating
the Company’s corporate social responsibility. These accomplishments form a comprehensive
picture of CDC’s success in 2024.
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The results and honors achieved over the past year are a testament to the sound strategy of the
Board of Directors and the effective leadership of the Executive Board. At the same time, they

serve as a source of motivation for the entire team to continue striving toward future success.
2. Financial Situation

a} Assets

As of March 31, 2025, CDC's total assets amounted to VND 2,083.85 billion, representing an
increase of VND 365.19 billion compared to the same peried of the previous year, equivalent to
a growth rate of 21.25%. The primary reasons for this increase include the Company’s charter
capital augmentation during 2024, a rise in revenue over the year, which in turn led to an
increase in accounts receivable and customer advances related to business and production

activities compared to the prior year.
b) Debt Payable

As of March 31, 2025, CDC’s total outstanding borrowings amounted to over VND 298.6
billion, representing a decrease of 18.27% compared to the same period in 2023. The
borrowings primarily consisted of short-term debts used to supplement working capital and to

secure the performance guarantees for the Company’s project contracts

Table 1: Details of outstanding borrowings as of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025
Unit: VND million

No. ltem 31/03/2024 31/03/2025
1 Short-term Loans 335.746 273.528
1 Short-term Loans 331.130 268.970
1.1 | MB BANK - Dien Bien Phu Branch 143.728 132 102
1.2 Vietinbank — Do Thanh Branch 35.397 51.478
1.3 | BIDV — Thanh Xuan Branch 83.384 70.690
1.4 | Mr. Ngé Tén Long ; .
LF My. Nguyén Khic Thinh 17.236 -
1.6 | Mr. Mai Pinh Chat 21.500 .
1.7 | Mrs. Dang Thanh Trang 15.500 -
1.8 | Other individuals 12.385 14.700
g Current portion of long-term debt 4.616 4,558
2.1 Shinhanbank — Ha Noi Branch 1.158 1.158
2.2 Vietinbank — Do Thanh Branch 3.458 3.400
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No. Item 31/03/2024 31/03/2025
II | Long-term Loans 29.670 25.111
1 Shinhanbank — Ha Noi Branch 4.441 3.283
2 Vietinbank — Do Thanh Branch 25.228 21.828
TOTAL 365.415 293.64%

Source: Audited Financial Statements for the Years 2023 and 2024

CDC’s Receivables Status
Table 2: Receivables as of March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024

Unit: VND million

RECEIVABLES 31/03/2024 31/03/2025 +/-%
I Short-term receivables 760.907 1.042.665 37%
1 Short-term trade receivables from 797 103 930.896 8%
customers
2 | Short-term advances to suppliers 28.689 109.379 | 281.3%
3 | Other short-term receivables 5.115 3.850 | -24,7%
4 Prmiismn for doubttul short-term ) (1.460) )
receivables
Ii | Long-term receivables - - B
TOTAL 760.907 1.042.665 | -9,5%

Source: Audited Financial Statements for the Years 2023 and 20244

Details of short-term trade receivables from customers:

Unit: VND million

| No. | ITEM | 31/03/2024 | 310372025 | % |

| Dong Do Group Joint Stock ) 119.820 100%
Company
Xuan Thuy Trading and

2 | Services Joint Stock 151.759 123.156 -18.8%
Company

3 Military Petrochemical Joint 125.323 122728 2.1%
Stock Company
Century Real Estate
Investment and "

4 Development Joint Stock LAy 9045 | %
Company
CGM Investment and

5 | Construction Joint Stock 63.988 16.525 -712.2%
Company

6 | BIDGROUP Joint Stock 46.628 18.629 60.0%
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No. ITEM 31/03/2024 31/03/2025 +/-%

Company
A&T Binh Duong Urban

7 | Development Investment 4.459 97.809 | 2.093,5%
Joint Stock Company

g | Qg Traog Graup Jomt 28.303 83.119 | 193,7%

! ; . .10

Stock Company

9 | Other customers 187.639 305.764 63,0%
TOTAL 727.103 930.896 28,0%

Details of short-term advances to suppliers are as follows:

Unit: VND million

No. ITEM 31/03/2023 31/03/2024 +-%

CDC Mechanical and

1 | Electrical Joint Stock 4.755 29.339 517%
Company

9 Tin Phuc Vietnam Joint 9.476 10.494 10.7%
Stock Company
Van Tuong Trading and

3 | Fire Protection Company 1.460 1.460 0%
Limited
Viethouse Hanoi

4 | Construction Joint Stock - 10.556 .
Company

5 | Other suppliers 12,998 57.530 | 342,6%
TOTAL 28.689 109.379 | 281,3%

Details of other short-term receivables are as follows:

Unii: VND million

No. ITEM 31/03/2024 31/03/2025 +/-%

1 | Interest receivable on term 4.145 2.070 -
deposits 50,1%

2 | Advances 764 1.389 | 81,8%
3 | Deposits and collaterals 59 100 | 69.5%
4 | Other receivables 147 291 | 98,0%
TOTAL 5.115 3.850 -
24.7%

As of the end of the accounting periods on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025, the Company
had no overdue receivables (both short-term and long-term)

CDC’s Payables Status




Table 3: Payables as of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025
Unit: VND million

NO. PAYABLES 31/03/2024 31/03/2025 +- %
I | Short-term Liabilities 1.146.217 1.435.955 | 25,3%
1 | Short-term trade payables 492.696 609.070 | 23,6%
’ S:;z:s;’: RRSELEE g 296.093 520239 | 75.7%
3 | Taxes and amounts payable 6.743 5314 | 212%

to the State
4 | Payables to employees 4.431 5618 | 26.,8%
5 | Accrued short-term expenses 2.789 14.494 | 419,7%
6 | Other short-term payables 4.482 3.586 | -20.0%
. Ezit;;egseﬁ?;?ﬁizfs and 335,746 273.528 | -18,5%
8 | Bonus and welfare funds 3.238 4.10*.’; 26.8%
I1 | Long-term Liabilities 88.293 59.834 | -322%
1 Long-term trade payables 5%5323 28175 -51,9%
A [T R n
3 | Long-term provisions 6.547 -

TOTAL 1.234.510 1.495.788 | 21,2%

Source: Audited Financial Statements for the Years 2023 and 2024
Dretails of trade payables to suppliers are as foliows:

Unit: VND million

No. ITEM 31/03/2024 31/03/2025 +/-%

I | Short-term trade payabhles 492.696 609.070 23.6%
Viethouse Hanoi

1 Construction Joint Stock 19.961 19.125 -4.2%
Company
CDC Mechanical and

2 | Electrical Joint Stock 30.811 29.739 -3,5%
Company

3 | Mekong No.1 Construction 5.996 18.670 | 211.4%
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No. ITEM 31/03/2024 31/03/2025 +/-%

Investment Joint Stock
Company

4 | SungShin Vina Company 24.409 21251 | -12.9%
Limited

5 |Ngoe Khanh Trading and 24.039 78.000 | 224.5%
Services Company Limited

6 | Other suppliers 387.480 442285 14,1%

o | Lomgtenin Toade 58.623 28175 | -51,9%
Payables
Viethouse Hanoi

1 | Construction Joint Stock 5.661 8.414 48,7%
Company
HTG Infrastructure
Investment and

? Construction Joint Stock 3138
Company (Former name:
CDC Infrastructure Joint
Stock Company)

3 | Other suppliers 52.963 16.623 -68.6%
TOTAL 551.319 637.245 15,6%

Details of short-term advances from customers are as follows:

Unit: VND million

Development Investment Joint

No. ITEM 31/03/2024 31/03/2025 +/-%

1 | Thang Long Construction and
Investment Development Joint 20.155 153.054 | 659,4%
Stock Company

2 [20mnLeaThe Campmiy 62.135 16.970 | -72,7%
Limited

3 | HQC Services and Trading
Joint Steck Company B
(formerly: Kien Hung Services 930 ST | S
Joint Stock Company)

4 | Thanh Xuan Joint Stock 11.810 36.800 | 211.6%
Company

5 | Dong Da Development and
Investment Joint Stock - 68.360 -
Company

6 | A&T Binh Duong Urban 26.706 136.585 | 411,4%
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No. ITEM 31/03/2024 31/03/2025 +-%
Stock Company
7 | Phenikaa University - 26.380 -
8 | Payables to other parties 129.780 79.687 | -38.6%
TOTAL 296.093 520.239 | 75,7%

Details of short-term accrued expenses are as follows:

Unit: VND million

No. ITEM 31/03/2024 31/03/2025 +-%
1 | Accrued construction project 1913 13.744 | 618,5%
expenses
2 | Accrued interest expenses 351 375 6.8%
3 | Other accrued expenses 523 375 | -28.3%
TOTAL 2.789 14.494 | 419,7%

Details of other short-term payables are as follows:

Unit: VND million

No.

ITEM 31/03/2024 31/03/2025 +-%
1 | Trade union funding payable 380 950 8.0%
2 | Insurance payables 1.522 554 | -63,6%
3 | Dividends payable 1.690 1.690 5,0%
4 | Other payables 389 391 0,5%
TOTAL 4.482 3.586 | -20,0%

As of the end of the accounting periods on March 31. 2024 and March 31. 2025. the Company
duly fulfilled its obligations to repay principal and interest on all debts falling due.

3. Improvements in organizational structure, policies, and management.

The Company is currently engaging consulting firms to provide training, assessment, and

support for improving its organizational structure and corporate governance. Significant

investments are being made in project management and human resource management systems.

4. Development plans in future: Presented in Section 1.4 of this report.

5. Explanation of the Board of Management for auditor’s opinions (if any): None.

6. Assessment Report related to environmental and social responsibilities of the Company

Presented in Section I1.6 of this report
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IV. Assessments of the Board of Directors on the Company’s operation (for joint stock

companies)

1. Assessments of the Board of Directors on the Company’s operation, including the

assessment related to environmental and social responsibilities.

In 2024, the Board of Directors closely followed the objectives, tasks, targets, and plans
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders to direct and oversee the Company's business
operations as well as the Executive Board’s performance in achieving the set goals and tasks,

with the ultimate aim of maximizing shareholder value

Over the past year, the Company was honored with three significant awards: Top 500 Fastest
Growing Enterprises in Vietnam; Top 500 Outstanding Growth Enterprises in Vietnam; and Top
500 Largest Enterprises in Vietnam. Notably, on December 4, 2023, the State Securities
Commission issued Official Letter No. 8528/UBCK-GSBC confirming that CDC has completed
its registration as a public company. This marks a major milestone, signifying a pivotal

transformation in CDC’s development journey going forward.
Environmental and social responsibilities are presented in Section I1.6 of this report.
2. Assessment of Board of Directors on Board of Management s performance

[n compliance with the Company Charter, Corporate Governance Regulations, internal
management rules, and current laws, the Board of Directors” supervisory and evaluative

activities over the Executive Board in 2024 included:

— Monitoring the implementation of Resolutions/Decisions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders (GMS) and the Board of Directors (BOD); overseeing the Executive Board's

business operations.

— Providing guidance and supervision over the preparation and submission of the 2024 financial

statements, quarterly and semi-annual financial reports, and the annual report.

— Supervising the information disclosure process in accordance with regulations of the State

Securities Commission and the Stock Exchange to ensure transparency.

— Monitoring executive management activities to enhance business efficiency and ensure the

achievement of planned targets.

— Ensuring that Company operations comply with the Law on Enterprises, the Company
Charter, and other applicable legal regulations.

Overall, the Executive Board fulfilled its assigned responsibilities in 2024. However, due to
general market difficulties, some business targets were not fully achieved. The Board of
Directors provided guidance to the Executive Board to ensure that the 2025 business plan is
grounded in practical assessments and geared toward achieving optimal results.

Notable achievements and honors the Company received in the 2024 fiscal year include:
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VNR500 — Top 500 Largest Enterprises in Vietnam 2024

BCI Asia— Top 10 Leading Construction Contractors in Vietnam 2024

FAST500 — Top 500 Fastest Growing Enterprises in Vietnam 2024

Top 50 Vietnam Best Growth — Top 50 Outstanding Growth Enterprises in Vietnam 2024
ISO 14001:2015 — Environmental Management System Certification

[SO 45001:2018 — Occupational Health and Safety Management System Certification

3. Plans and orientations of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (BoD) continues to strengthen its direction and supervision, while

facilitating the Executive Board in fulfilling the objectives set out in the business plan approved
by the General Mecting of Shareholders (GMS). The BoD shall enhance the monitoring and
inspection of the Executive Board’s compliance with the resolutions of the GMS and the BoD,

adherence to legal regulations, internal rules, policies, and the Company’s Charter to ensure

capital safety and achievement of business targets.

In 2025, the BoD will focus its corporate governance efforts on the following areas:

Regulatory system: Continue reviewing and completing the Company’s internal rules and

policies to align with applicable laws and the actual conditions of the Company’s operations

Construction management: Further improve the management and operational capacity, build a
strong and professional production apparatus tailored to the Company’s needs and actual
conditions; focus on ensuring progress, quality, and occupational safety at construction sites;
expand construction areas; maintain existing client relationships and actively seek new

potential customers

Finance: Strengthen risk control and corporate governance, with a focus on stringent financial
management, efficient capital utilization, practicing thrift and eliminating waste to ensure

business efficiency; focus on directing the recovery of capital from construction projects and

nntotanding . racaivahlac:  mmaintain and anhenan onnd  asedit saladlascbhi;e it e aial
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institutions to secure capital for production and business activities.

Occupational safety and employee welfare: Improve working conditions and employee
welfare; ensure a harmonious balance between the interests of employees and sharcholders,
while fulfilling obligations to the State; ensure occupational safety at all Company
construction sites.

Human resources: Restructure and streamline the organizational structure for efficient
operation; enhance the quality of human resources to promptly meet the Company’s growth
requirements; develop policies and welfare regimes to attract talent and improve productivity.

Investment: Seek investment opportunities in core-sector projects; enhance production
capabilities and procure construction machinery and equipment; develop brand
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communication strategies with attention to form, content, and quality across corporate
communication channels, including upgrades to the Company’s website and fanpage. In 2025,
the Company also plans to explore potential opportunities for foreign investment.

V. Corporate governance
1. Board of Directors

a) Membem and structure of the Board of Directors:

'1 NO. FULLNAME POSITION . NUMBER OF OWNERSHIP
!l . 5 ' SHARES HELD | PERCENTAGE |
1 | MrNgoTénLong | Chairman 3220000 O B0%

2| MrTrn Van Truong | Deputy chairerson of the . 3220000 | 8,0%

: i board | i

3 kL, M Ngt Quy Nhim Independent BOD Member 100000 O 02%

4 | MrLé Van Quang  BOD member 1.750.000 4.3%
| & | Mirs Dling Thanh Trang | Board Member and General 3220000 | 8.0%
| | . Director
# Mr. Ngb Tén Long - Chairman
- Date of Birth: 08/08/1977 Nationality: Viet Nam
- Professional Qualification: Civil Engineer
- Positions Held at the Listed Organization:

10/2016 — . Director of Hanoi Construction Design Supervision Consulting
03/2017 Company (now CDC Construction Joint Stock Company)

03/2017— 12/2018 : General Director of CDC Hanoi Joint Stock Company (now CDC
Construction Joint Stock Company)

12/2018 —present : Chairman of the Board of Directors of CDC Hanoi Joint Stock
Company (now CDC Construction Joint Stock Company), term
2021-2026

- Positions Held at Other Organizations:

2000—12/2006 : Engincer and Team Leader at Bach Dang Joint Stock Company —
Hanoi Construction Corporation

4/2007 — : Deputy Director of Construction Enterprise No. 3 under Tu Liem
12/2008 Urban Development Joint Stock Company
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1/2009 —5/2014  : Deputy General Director of Ecoba Vietnam Joint Stock Company
2/2015-9/2016  : Director of Truong Giang Sapa Joint Stock Company

2023 — present :  Chairman of the Board of Directors of CDC Real Estate Investment
Joint Stock Company

2023 — present :  Member of the Board of Directors of CDC Nha Trang Joint Stock
Company
* Mr. Tran Vin Trudng - Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
- Date of Birth: 23/09/1986 Nationality: Viet Nam
- Professional Qualification: Master of Construction Management / Civil Engineer
- Positions Held at the Listed Organization:
2015-11/2017 : Chief Commander at Hanoi Construction Design Supervision

Consulting Joint Stock Company (now CDC Construction Joint Stock
Company)

11/2017-2018 : Deputy General Director of CDC Hanoi Joint Stock Company (now
CDC Construction Joint Stock Company)

2018 —-6/2024 : Member of the Board of Directors cum General Director of CDC Hanoi
Joint Stock Company (now CDC Construction Joint Stock Company),
terms 20182021 and 2021-2026

06/2024 — : Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

present

- Positions Held at Other Organizations:

2009 -2013 :  Chief Commander at Construction and Investment Joint Stock Company
No. 4
2013 —-2014 . Project Manager at Kinh Do TCI Joint Stock Company

2023 —present : Member of the Board of Directors of CDC Nha Trang Investment Joint
Stock Company

02/2024 Chairman of the Board of Directors of CDC Mechanical and Electrical
present Joint Stock Company
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1995-1996:

1596-1998
1998-2011

2011-2020

2020 dén nay

2018 —nay

2005 — 2006

2012 -2015

2015 -2021

2017 — nay

2017 —nay

01/11/2023 - nay:

* Mr. Ngé Quy Nhim - Independent BOD Member
- Date of Birth: 21/11/1974 Nationality: Viet Nam
- Professional Qualification: Master of Business Administration

- Positions Held at the Listed Organization:

Independent Member of the Board of Directors, term 2021-2026

- Positions Held at Other Organizations:

HR & Administration Specialist at Vinaconex—Taisei International Joint

Venture Company Limited (Vinata)
Teaching Assistant, Foreign Trade University
Lecturer in Human Resource Management, Foreign Trade University

Consultant and Chief Strategy Officer, OCD Management Consulting
Joint Stock Company

Senior Lecturer and Head of Human Resource Management

Department, Foreign Trade University

* Mr. Lé Vin Quang - Member of the Board of Directors
- Date of Birth: 23/12/1982 Nationality: Viet Nam
- Professional Qualification: Master of Business Administration

- Positions Held at the Listed Organization:

Member of the Board of Directors, terms 2018-2021 and 20212026

- Positions Held at Other Organizations:

Finance and Accounting Specialist at Unilever Vietnam Co., Ltd.
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of Ecoba Vietnam Joint Stock Company

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Thuan Duc Joint Stock

Company

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Binh Thuan Plastics Group Joint
Stock Company

Chairman of the Board of Directors of CDC Holding Joint Stock Company
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2017 —nay

Owner of HTI Investment and Trading Company Limited

* Mrs. Ding Thanh Trang - Member of the Board of Directors cum General Director: As
stated in Section 112

b) The committees of the Board of Directors. none.

c) Activities of the Board of Directors:

Meetings, Resolutions, and Decisions Issued in the Fiscal Year 2024 by the Board of Directors

of CDC Construction Joint Stock Company.

No.

Resolution/Decision
No.

Date

Content

Approval rate

12/2024/NQ-HPQT

01/04/2024

Appaint the person
responsible for corporate
governance

100%

13/NQ-HDQT

01/04/2024

Resolution 1o restructure
the company departments

100%

Ll

14/QD-HPQT

01/04/2024

Decision to change the
structure of the Finance
Board

100%

15/QD-HPQT

01/04/2024

Decision to establish an
internal audit department

100%

16/QD-HPQT

01/04/2024

Decision to merge and
rename the A-B Contract
and Bidding Departmeni

100%

17/QD-HPQT

01/04/2024

Decision to merge the
Supply and  Equipment

Management Department

100%

18/0D-HPOT

01/04/2024

lo establish a
Market Department

Decision

100%

18A/QD-HDQT

01/04/2024

Decision to change the
structure of the System and
Human Resources Board

100%

19/2024/NQ-HPQT

05/04/2024

Resolution regarding the
final registration date and
the plan for additional
public offerings of shares

100%

10.

20/NQ-HPQT

17/04/2024

Implement business
production activities for
2024 and approve the

credit limit at BIDV —

100%
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No.

Resolution/Decision
No.

Date

Content

Approval rate

Thanh Xuan Branch

11

21/NQ-HPQT

23/04/2024

Implement business
production activities for
2024 and approve the

credit Iimit at TPBANK

100%

12.

22/2024/NQ-HDQT

27/05/2024

Approve  the list  of
investors eligible to

purchase the unsold shares

100%

13.

23/2024/NQ-HPQT

28/05/2024

Approve the resulls of the
additional public offering
of shares

100%

14.

24/2024/NQ-HPQT

31/05/2024

Issue the amended and
supplemented Charter

100%

1,

25/2024/NQ-HDQT

01/06/2024

Appoint the Legal
Representative,  General
Director, and  Deputy
Chairman of the Board of
Directors

100%

16.

26/2024/QD-HPQT

03/06/2024

Decision to appoint the
Deputy Chairman of the
Board of Directors

100%

1.

27/2024/QB-HPQT

03/06/2024

Decision to appoint the
General Director

100%

18.

28/2024/NQ-HBQT

03/06/2024

Clarify the Charter

100%

19.

29/2024/NQ-HDQT

02/07/2024

Change the representative
of the account holder ai
credit institutions

100%

20.

30/2024/NQ-HBQT

09/07/2024

Approve the contract with
related parties at CDC
Mechanical and Electrical
Joint Stock Company

100%

21.

31/2024/NQ-HDQT

16/07/2024

Approve the femporary
suspension of the Southern

Branch's operations

100%

22.

32/2024/NQ-HDQT

19/07/2024

Resolution to approve the
first trading date of CCC

100%
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No.

Resolution/Decision
No.

Date

Content

Approval rate

shares on UPCOM

23.

33/2024/NQ-HPQT

22/07/2024

Resolution to clarify the
Sfirst trading date of CCC
shares on UPCOM

100%

24,

34/2024/NQ-HDBQT

31/07/2024

Resolution to issue internal
regulations on corporate
governance

100%

25.

34A/2024/NQ-HBQT

31/07/2024

Resolution fo issue
operational regulations for
the Board of Directors

100%

26.

35/2024/NQ-HPQT

31/07/2024

Resolution to issue
information disclosure
regulations

100%

27.

36/2024/NQ-HPQT

01/08/2024

Resolution by the Board of

Directors to approve the
plan to solicit shareholder

opinions in writing

28.

37/2024/NQ-HBQT

02/08/2024

Resolution by the Board of

Directors to approve the
extension of the credit limit
ai  Military Commercial
Joint Stock Bank — Dien
Bien Phu Branch

100%

100%

29,

38/2024/NQ-HPQT

21/08/2024

Resolution by the Board of

Directors  to  approve
transgolions with velated
parties at CDC
Mechanical and Electrical

Joint Stock Company

100%

30.

39/2024/NQ-HPQT

05/09/2024

Resolution by the Board of

Directors  fo  approve
transactions with related
parties at cDC
Mechanical and Electrical
Joint Stock Company

100%

31.

40/2024/NQ-HDQT

04/10/2024

Approve the credit limit at
Techcombank

100%
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Resolution/Decision
No.

Date

Content

Approval rate

32.

41/2024/NQ-HPQT

14/11/2024

Resolution by the Board of
Directors to approve the
capital  contribution  to
establish CDCLEASING
Investment  Joint  Stock
Company

100%

33.

42/2024/ NQ - HDQT

28/11/2024

Resolution by the Board of
Directors fo approve the
credit  limit at  Military
Commercial Joint  Stock
Bank

100%

34.

43/2024/ NQ - HBQT

29/11/2024

Resolution by the Board of
Directors te  approve
transactions with related
parties at CDC
Mechanical and Electrical
Joint Stock Company

100%

35,

44/2024/ NQ - HPQT

10/12/2024

Resolution by the Board of
Directors 1o approve
transactions with related
parties at ¢bC
Mechanical and Electrical
Joint Stock Company

100%

36.

44A/2024/ NQ - HBQT

10/12/2024

Resolution on the Approval
of the Implemeniation and
Signing of the
Construction Contract for
the Déong Pa Apartment
Complex Project, Hue City

100%

b

45/2024/ NQ - HBQT

17/12/2024

Resolution by the Board of
Directors to approve the
distribution of dividends

for 2023

100%

38.

46/2024/ NQ - HDQT

25/12/2024

Resolution by the Board of
Directors to approve the
purchase of shares offered
to existing shareholders of
CDCLEASING Investment

100%
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] ecision
No. Resol “aﬁm Date Content Approval rate

Joint Stock Company

Resolution by the Board of
Directors  to  approve
39.| 47/2024/NQ-HPQT | 28/12/0004 | "scctions with related |

' parties at cDC
Mechanical and Electrical

Joint Stock Company

Resolution by the Board of
Directors  to  approve
transactions with related

40. | 01/2025/NQ-HDQ'1 13/01/2025 Biirging ud cne 100%
Mechanical and FElectrical
Joint Stock Company
Approval of the 100%

; 2
41.| 02/2025/NQ-HPQT 17/02/2025 departmental restructuring

Approval of the delisting 100%

42. | 03/2025/NQ-HPQT 210372025 | £ UPCOM

Techcombank/Approval of 100%
credit limits and
43. | 04/2025/NQ-HPQT 24/03/2025 transactions with
Techcombank

d) Activities of the Board of Directors independent members. Activities of the Board of Directors'
subcommittees.

In 2024, the Independent Member of the Board of Directors fully performed their functions and

3 i . . H
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The Independent Member of the Board of Directors made significant contributions to the
Company's development orientations as well as the Board's overall activities, specifically as

follows:

Enhancing the transparency and effectiveness of the Board of Directors through coordination
between the Board, the Executive Management in implementing the Resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders (GMS), Resolutions/Decisions of the Board of Directors, supetvising
information disclosure, controlling financial reporting, and monitoring transactions with related

parties;
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2.Board of Supervisors:

several key internal policies.

Contributing to the development of business strategies and medium- to long-term plans,

providing input on the Company’s new organizational structure, and reviewing and revising

e) The list of memhbers of the Board of Directors possessing ceriificates on corporate
gorvenance. The list of members of the Board of Directors participating in corporate

governance training programs in the year: None.

a) Members and structure of the Board of Supervisors/: The list of members of the Board of

Supervisors, ownership percentages of voting shares and other securities issued by the

company).
Members of “
No. Board of Position Ripibee ofshanee Ownership ratio
s held
Supervisors
Ms. Tran Thi ; — 0
1 Thanh Hidag Head of BOS 30.000 0,07%
o | Ms Nguyén Member of BOS 100.000 0,25%
Thi Lé ’ "
Mr. Phan Dixc 20.000 0.05%
3 - Member of BOS
Giap

b) Activities of the Board of Supervisors:

In the fiscal year 2024, the Supervisory Board held four (04) meetings to implement several

matters as planned at the beginning of the year, specifically as follows:

No.

Meeting

Date

Contents

Meeting no.1

15/05/2024

Implementation of ithe Supervisory Board's Activities
in the 2024 Financial Year.

Meeting no.2

10/09/2024

Proposal to select An Viet Audit Company Limited
for the review of the financial statements for the
operating period from April 1, 2024, to September
30, 2024, and to audit the financial statements for
the financial year ending March 31, 2025, of CDC
Construction Joint Stock Company.

LFS

Meeting no.3

26/12/2024

Activity plan of the Supervisory Board for the last
three months of the financial year.

Meeting no.4

15/03/2025

Summary of the Supervisory Board’s activities in the
fiscal year 2024 and operational orientation for 2025
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3. Transactions, remuncrations and benefits of the Board of Directors, Board of
Management and Board of Supervisors/.

a) Salary, rewards, remuneration and benefits:
The audited financial statements for the year 2024 are attached herewith along with this report.

b) Share transactions by internal shareholders:

Number of shares Number of shares
Relationshi | owned at the beginning | owned at the end of the B .
Transactio p with of the period period -easnm_for
No ; increasing,
n execufor internal ;
decreasing
persons Number | Percentag | Number | Perceniag
of shares e of shares e
Ms. Péng [nternal
1 Thanh person 1.750.000 5% 3.220.000 8%
Trang
Mr. Trin Internal
2 Vin person 1.750.000 5% 3.220.000 8%
Truong
g | MoMa o Intemal | con000 | 171% | 805.000 2%
Dinh Chat person
Purchase of
Mr. Nguyén |  Internal e . additional
4 Khic Thinh person 600000 LTl R000 il shares issued
to existing
Mr, Ms. Internal shareholders
5 | Nguyén Thi person 265.000 0.76% 299999 0.745%
Thuy
Mr. Nguyén Related
6 | Vanlien | partiesof 1 o55000 | 057% | 300000 | 0.745%
the internal
party
. Mr. Ngo Internal 50.000 0.14% 100.000 0.24%
Quy Nhim person

c) Contracts or transactions with internal sharcholders:
- Please refer to Annex [
d) Assessing the Implementation of regulations on corporate governance:

In the fiscal year 2024, the Company fully complied with corporate governance regulations in
accordance with the Law on Enterprises, the Law on Securities, other relevant legal provisions,
and the Company’s internal regulations.

44



V1. Financial statements
1. Auditor’s opinions:

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of CDC Construction Joint Stock Company as at March 31, 2025, as well as its
financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended, in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, and the
relevant legal regulations on the preparation and presentation of financial statements.

2. Audited financial statements: Attach this report.

Recipients: >
- As above; CONFIRMATI{?N BY THE COMPANY’S

- Lau: BOD LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

e
o

- r/y
R 'y

“SCMRNGO TAN LONG
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CBC MECHANIC

The related company of the

Ldth Floor, ADIL
Building, Small and
Medim=sazed Industry
Areg, Van Phue

Eleet: weal installation for & mixed-use progeet (ineluding

AND ELECTRIC insiderrel ingide ¥ g INE T D :

6 ; : insidortelaled party of the insider | o nogeou | Traditional Crat Throughious the yeor i Sdehiy Teatl af it et ettt sise- b bintlegmiten)
JOINT STOCK 15 currently the CEC-of the - 1 : 2024 August 21, 2024 : Bt
COMPANY Coimpa Village, Van Phic Value 934,370,260 WVND

? : i Ward, Ha Dong

District, Hanai City,
Vietnam
14th Floor, ADI
Butlding, Small and

RROMIRIL ety ot ?”Mn_:ﬂ..&_m_“__“:n_:ua Elgetrieal rengvat k- for CDC Construction O

g - . . 2 - # ily P . Y = £+ | re & o Bl

AND ELECTRIC insiderrelated parry of the ingider VA Throughout the year |Resclution No, 3872024/Board nf Directars dated AR nsteueion e

7 ; . Q107937472 Traditienal Craft Head juarters

JOINT STOCK is curvently the CEQ of the I 7 204 Avigust 21,2024 | ;
COMPANY Company Village, ¥an Phic | Walue 261367581 VND
’ Warnd, Ha Dony
District, Hanmi City,
Wietnarm
1dth Floor, ADI
Biilding, Small and
CDC MECHANIC  |The related company of the Medium-sized Industry .nr”:_._:._m. vath CDC MECHANIC AND ELECTRIC JOINT . o
AND ELECTRIC ingiducivelated party of the insider Area, Van Phue Throughout the year |Resotution No. 35/2024/B aacd of Direstors dated STOCK COMPANY for electrical installation in the Still in the negotianon phase,

& Al i 3 Ne. 24/Boa R
JOINT STOCK is curreritly the CEQ of the 0107857472 ,_,u..sn__na_._mF n..n&. 2024 September 5, 2024 hasenent and —wﬁm af the Riverside Apartinent Complex the contract hias not heen
COMPANY LA Village, Van Phiz Projeci m Da Nang signed

il Ay Ward, Ha Dong Value 34,968,520, 872 VND (enchuding YAT)

Distriet, Hamei Ciey,

Vietnam

L4th Fleor, ADI

Building, Small and The parties have nat

= i d the i 1

CDC MECHANIC  [The related company of the Ha_r_ﬂ “_wﬂ Industry Contr-ct with CDC MECHANIC AND ELECTRIC JOINT u_._a__”_,mﬂm__“._w Ma”n““mw_ﬂu_“
AND ELECTRIC msider/related party of the insider e = Throughout the year [Resolulion Mo 39/.2024Board of Directors dated STOCK COMPANY for electncal installation at ART Sky EIE. ;

2 v x 1 LLOTRS7472 Traditional Craft F ARy ; transachion has been canceled
JOINT 8TOCK 1% eurrently the CEC of the A i 2024 Septamber 5, 2024 Garde 1 Luceury Apartment Projeet in Thuan An, Bink Duong 7 g
COMPANY Compan Vidtage: i Vilue 160,055,654.341 VND fexcluding VAT P s

e B Ward, Ha Dang e e i AT A3A024NG-HBOT dated
District, Hanoi Movember 26 2024,
Vietnam
. Mhi €O dir dn Cho Ap
The related company of'the 5 . i 25 y
CDCLEASING o L Dén, Xa Yén Ti jo I DCLE
o Sveaknen Fent insider/related party of the insider 2901310752 :Hﬁj M..mu.ww_.?”_”_._ﬂm. Throughout the vear |Resolunon No. 41/2024/Board of Directors dated M_c“_“_”_ __.H._: el ng NG R
; ; | : ; b o2 . Gt f; !
Stock Company ._M n_._._.nm_u.w wE Rt e Tinh Bée MNink, Vit 0y INvember I 2L Velue: 57,250,000,000 VND
cmpany, i
MNam {
14tk Floor, AD]
Building, Small and
COC MECHANIC | The related company of the _.”_M“Eﬂhm_wﬂ_ﬂ_h“:mﬁ:ﬂ | Proviiling labor and maseriats for electrizal, low-voltage,
1" AND ELECTRIC ingiderirelated party of the insider 0107957472 HE&,:EN_ Crafl Threughout the vear |Resolution Mo, 43/2024/Board of Directors dated witer and air conditioning system in Tower A (dth Aoor -
JOINT STOCK is eurrently the CED of the ks Vi Var P 2024 WNovember 29, 2024 roef) 1l Binh Deong Progect
COMPANY Compiny. gt ban bl Vilue 34.000,287.687 VND

Ward, Ha Dong
District, Hanai City,
Vietnam
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CDC MECHANIC
AND ELECTRIC
JOTNT 8TOCK
COMPANY

The related company of the
insiderrelated party of the insider
s currently the CEC of the
Cormpany

DEOTA5T4T2

Fhth Floor, AL
Building, Smell and
Medim-gized Indysiry
Area, Van Phuc
Traditional Craf
Village, Vian Phic
Ward, Ha Dong
Dhstrict, Hanot O
Vietnam

Throughout the vear
2024

ezofution Ma

3, 2033

41/2025/Board of Directors dated Jamuary

Frav sien of labor, materials for the construction of M&E and
Fire afety System (exeluding the smoke exhaust and
et ztion systems).

Yaluc: 86,330,601 1911 VND (including VAT

Thie badwnces and other ivansactions with related parites shewn i tie andited finaticial siatements fir the bear 2024 are atached to this annie! repor,
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COC CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors and the Management of CDC Construction Joint Steck Company (“the Company”}
present this report together with the Company's audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2025,

THE BOARD OF DIREGTORS AND THE MANAGEMENT

The members of the Board of Directors and the Management of the Company who held the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2025 and to the date of this report are as follows:

BOARD COF DIRECTORS

Mr. Ngo Tan Long Chairman

Mr. Tran Van Truong Vice Chairman (appointed on 03 June 2024)
Member (until 03 June 2024)

Mr. Le Van Quang iMember

Ms. Dang Thanh Trang Member

Mr. Ngo Quy Nham independent member

THE MAMAGEMENT

Ms. Dang Thanh Trang General Director (appointed on 03 June 2024)
Deputy General Director (resigned on 03 June 2024)

dr. Tran Van Truong General Director (resignad on 03 June 2024)

Mr. Mai Dinh Chat Deputy General Director

Mr. Mguyen Khac Thinh Deputy General Direclor

Mr. Mguyen Van Linh Deputy General Director (appointed on 11 July 2024)

Mr, Mguyen Huu Bang Deputy Genera! Directar (appointed on 16 Seplember 2024, resigned on 24
June 2025)

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Company at the date of this report are as follow:

Mr. Nge Tan Leng Chairman
Mr. Tran Van Truong Vice Chairman
Ms. Dang Thanh Trang General Director

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors and the Management of the Company is responsible for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, that give a frue and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 March 2025, and its finacial performance and its cash flows for the fiscal year. In preparing
those financial statements, the Board of Directors and the Management is required to;

- Comply with Vietnamese accounting standards, corporate accounting system and the relevant statutory
requirernents relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial staternents;

- Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

- Design and implement an effective internal contrel system for the purpose of properly preparation and
presentation of the financlal statements so as to minimize errors and frauds; and

- Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless itis inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue its business.

The Board of Directers and the Management is responsible {or ensuring that proper accounting records are
kept, which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial pesition of the Company and that the
financial statements comply with Vietnamese accounting standards, corporate accounting system and the
relevant statutory requirements applicable to the preparation and presentation of the financiat statements. The
Board of Directors and the Management is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frauds and other iregulfarities.
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/
The Board of Dire_éiors and the Management confirms that the Company has complied with the above
requirements in preparing these financial staternents.

£

] ﬁﬁ:nﬂ b halfiﬁ)f the Beard of Directors and the Management,

33
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Dahg Thanih Trang

General Director
Hanoi 24 June 2025




An Viet Auditing Company Limited

ﬂ n V g @i Lawel 12 167 Building, Bul Thi Xuan Street, s Ba Trang Disiricl, Hanal

i agyrd 50 FRADAY BOTE SO0
Caikilad Sl pyrrisene W \.r.,wg.cnt :91I{‘-[Jcii_.r_.rf| T {84 ::1: Bl.j: _?Bi
E anviei@anvielcpa.com F(84-24} 8278 20058

No: 128 /2025/BCKT-AVI-TCH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To: Shareholders
Board of Directors and the Management of
CDC Construction Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CDC Construction Joint Stock Company ("the
Company®), prepared on 24 June 2025, as set out from page 05 to page 33, which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the related Statements of income, cash flows for the year ended and Notes to
the financial statements.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Management

The Board of Directors and the Managementis responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese accounting standards, corperate accounting system and
the statutory relevant requirements applicable to the preparation and presentation of finacial statements and
for such internal control as board of directors and management determines Is necessary fo enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibiiity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on the resullts of our audit, We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese standards en auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial slatements are free from material misstaiement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial staterments. The procedures selected depend on the auditors” judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of materal misstatement of the financial statemeants, whether due to fraud or eror, In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider inlernal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair
presentztion of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an apinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
confrol. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by board of directors and managament, as well as evaluating
the overall presantation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidences we have obtained are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Auditors’ opinion
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, the

financial position of CDC Construction Joint Stock Company as at 31 March 2025, the results of its operations
and its Ga_sh ﬂows for the year then ended, |r| accordance with Vietnamese accounting standards corporate

{71/# /J_,

Vu Bth;h Minh Deoan Thu Hang

Generzal Director Auditor
Certificate of audit practice registration Certificate of audit practice registration
0034-2023-055-1 1396-2023-055-1

For and on behalf of
ANVIET AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED

Ha Noi, 24 Junes 2025

Farnaring for Sucenss
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BALANCE SHELT

As at 31 March 2025

210312028

FORM BO1 - DN
Unit: VND

01/04/2024

1,895,197,292,109

267,554,863,200
257 554,863,200

53,060,000,000
§3,000,000,000

1,042,665,109,971
0930,896,005,948
109,378,667,007
3,849,971,568
(1,459,624,642)

541,626,825,319
541,626,825,319

350,493,619
298,938 871
51,554,743

188,654,803,167

76,481,562,288
68,136,996,876
104, 530,370,816
(36,393,373,940)
8,344,565,412
8.675,698,759
(271,333,347}

280,500,000
280,500,000

96,500,000,000
B8, 500,000,000
30,000,000,000

16,392,740,879
15,392,740,879

1,591,865,541,820

97,187,948,664
97,187,948,664

204,186,696,521
204,186,696,521

760,906,963,468
727,103,472,665
28,688,784,545
5,114,708,258

529,290,598,165
529,290,598,165

293,335,002
241,780,254
51,554,748

126,796,846,615

79,607,678,6658
71,183,113.252
88,873,075,068
(28,689,961,818)
8,424 565 418
8,615,898 759
{(191,333,343)

427,487,148
427 487 145

30.000,000,000

30,000,000,000

16,761,680,802
18,761,680,802

ITEMS Codes Notes
CURRENT ASSETS 100

Cash and cash equivalents 110

Cash 111 5
Short-term financial investments 120
Invesmeants held to maturity 123 B
Short-term receivables 130
Short-tarm receivables from customers 131 8
Short-term advances to suppliers 132 g
Other receivables 136 10
Provision for doubtful debts 137
inventories 140 11
Inventories 141

Other current assels 150
Shert-term prepaid expenses 151 12
Value added {ax deductibles 152
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200

Fixed assets 220
Tangible fixed assets 221 14
- Cosf 222

- Accumulated deprecialion 223
Intangible fixed asseis 227 13
- Cost 228

- Aceumulzted amaorfization 229
Long-term assets in progress 740
Construction in progress. 242
Long-term financlal investments 280
investments in associates 252 {
investments held to maturity 255 5
Qther long-term assets 260
Long-term prepayments 261 12
TOTAL ASSETS 270

2,083,852,085,276

1,718,662,388,435
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BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

As al 31 March 2025

ITEMS

LIABILITIES

Gurrent liabilities

Trade accounts payables
Short-term advance from customers
Taxes and amounts payable to
State Budget

Payables to employges

Short-term accrued expenses
Other current payables

Short-term loans and obligations under
finance [eases

Bonus and welfare funds

Long-term Liabilities
Long-term trade payables

Long-term loans and obligations under
finance leases

Long-term provisions
EQUITY

Owners' equity

Owners' contributed capital

- Crdinary shares with voling rights
Share premium

[nvestment and development fund
Retained earnings

Codes Notes
300
310
311 15
312 16
213 17
314
315 18
319 19
320 20
322
330
331 15
238 20
342
440
410 21
411
4ifa
412
418
421

- Undistribufed earnings accumulfated fo 421a

the prior year end
- Undistributed earnings of the
current year

TOTAL RESOURCES

Preparer

421h

440

Chief Accountant

S

i

3110312025

FORM BO1 - DN
Unit: VIND

01/04/2024

1,495,788,291,328

1,435,954,678,228
£09,069,802,112
520,239,174,150
5,314,145,392

5.617,534,842
14,493,640 638

3,585,684,678

273,525,466,010

4,1086,230,305

58,833,613,100
28,174,797,437
25,111,474,108

6,547,341,554
538,063,803,948

588,063,803,948
402,500,000,000
402,500,000,000
18,041,760,000
2,737,485,670
164,784,557,078
122,496,068,075

42,288,498,003

1,234,510,177,511

1,146,217,084,727
492,695,707,533
298,002,783,337
6,742,957,248

4,431,450,169
2 788,690,069
4,482 150,064
335,745,750,981

3,237,565,326

88,293,092,784
58,623,487,527
29 669,605,257

484,152,210,924

484,152,210,924
350,000,000,000
350,000,000,000

2,158,376, 884
131,993,834,040
103,038,334,751

28 855499,289

&
B

2,083,862,095,276

£
1,718,662,388,435

i

!

7
Ha Noi, 24 June 2025
£

MNguyen Thi Hong Mhung

Nguyen Thi Thuy




CDC CONSTRUCTI M L iNT STOCK COMPANY

iINCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2025
FORM BOZ - DN
Unit: VND
From 01/04/2(24 From 01/04/2023
ITEMS Codes Notes to 311032025 to 3170312024
1. Revenue from services rendered 5] 22 2,189,074,369.779 1,813,312,178,539
2. Deductions 02 . .
3. Net revenus from services rendersd 10 2,189,074,369,779 1,813,312,178,539
4. Cost of services renderad 11 23 2,104,444 079,663 1,741,927,084,472
B 5. Gross profit from services rendered 20 84,630,290,116 71,385,094,087
&. Financizl income 21 24 27.314,612.856 29077 287,053
7. Financial expenses 22 25 17,014,424, 335 25,398,934,947
- OFf which: Loan inferest charged 23 16,950,436,325 25,243,369,485
8. Selling expenses 25 - -
9. General and administration expenses 26 26 41,980,175,283 38,085,615,718
10. Operating profit 30 52,940,303,354 36,977,830,455
11. Other income a1 27 736,673,972 130,202,699
12. Other expenses 22 28 275,348,641 483,410,638
13. Profit from other activities 4Q 461,225,331 {353,207,935)
14, Accounting profit before tax 5 53,401,528,685 326,624,622.5186
15. Current corporate income tax expense 31 30 11,113,030,682 7.669,123,227
17. Met profit after corporate income tax &0 42 288,498,003 28;9555499,259
18. Earning per share 74 31 1,050 795

Ha Noi, 24 Jung 2025

Preparer Chief Accounfant

neral Birector |

Nguyen Thi Hong Nhung Noguyen Thi Thuy




CDC CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK COMPANY

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect Method)
For the year ended 31 Maich 2025

other entities
4, Cash recoverd from lending, seliing debt intrusments 24
of other entities

255 268,744 336

5. Investmenis in other entitiss 25 (66,500,000,000)
6. Interest earned, dividend and profit received 27 22,354 941,637
Met cash from investing activities a0 104,467 ,362,555

lil. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

1. Proceeds from issuing stocks, receiving capital from 31 70,875,000,000

OWNers

2. Proceeds from borrowings 33 1,043 652,309, 192

3, Repayments of borrowings 34 {1,110,427,725,311)

4, Dividends and profits paid 36 {8,050,000,000)
Net cash from financing activities 40 {3,950,416,119)
Net decrease in cash during the year 50 160,366,914,536
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 60 97,187,948,664
the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 70 257,554,883,200

i Freparer Chief Accountart

e
g

FORM B03 - BN
Unit: VD
From 01/04/2024 From 01/04/2023
RS S to 31/03/2025 to 31/03/2024
. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
i.  Profit for the year o1 53,401,528,685 38,624,622,516
Adjustment for
- Depreciation and amaortization of fixed assets 02 8,016,938,945 7,459,449 429
- Provisions 03 8,006,966.196 -
- {Gain}fLoss from investing activities 05 {19,417 ,564,261) {25,077,287,053)
- Interest expenses 06 16,950,436,325 25,243,369,485
3, -Operating profit before movements in working 08 66,957,305,880 40,250,154,377
capital
- Increasaidecrease in receivables 08 {285,292,817,705) 88,132,854,187
- Increase/decrease in inventory 10 (12,336,227,154) {31,465,054,2586)
- Increase/decrease in payables (exclude infersst 11 317,495,401,587 {195,173,005,004)
expenses, CIT)
- Increasel/decrease in prepayments and others 12 1,311,781,306 (14,477,517.324)
- Interest paid 14 (16,927,226,993) {25,539,105,923)
- Corporate income tax paid 5 (11,358,148,831) (12,489,334 462)
Net cash from operating activities 20 59,849,968,100 {149,761,008,405)
il. CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -
1. Acquisition of fixed assets and other long-term 21 {1,712,044, 787} (7,219,548,000)
assets g
2. Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and other 22 8,400,000 -
long-term assetls
3. Cash outilow for lending, buying debt intrusmenis of 23 (104,953,678,631) {515,995 318.621)

694,926,220 277

36,878,185 887
208,595,539,543

1,147,723,977,835

(1,207,429,411,627)

{2,900,000,000)

{62,605,433,692) -

(3,780,902,554]
100,968,851,218

§7,187,948,684

““Ha Noi, 24 Jine 2025

i
-

\ - Nguyen Thi Hong Nhung Nguyen Thi Thuy N
8
|
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORM BOS - DN
These notes are an infegral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financia! statemenis

1

;%

T2

4.1.

4.2,

GENERAL INFORMATION
Structure of ownership

CLC Censtruction Joint Stock Company (previously kriown as Hanol Construction Design Consultancy
and Supervision Joint Stock Company, renamed on 15 March 2017) operates under the Business
Registration Certificate No. 0105283073 Issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment,

initially granted on 27 April 2011, and amended for the 16th time on 12 June 2024. B

Charter Capital: 402,500,000,000 VND, equivalent to 42,500,000 shares with a par value of VND 10,000
per share.

The Company's shares are officially traded on the Ho Chi Minh Gity Stock Exchange (HOSE) from 21
April 2025 with the stock code as CCC according to Decision No. 145/QD-SGDHCM dated 20 March
2025,

Total employees of thé Company as at 31 March 2025 was 318 (at 31 March 2024 was 266)

The Company's head office is located at LK 18-24, Galaxy 8, Van Phue Urban Area, 85 To Huu Sireet,
Van FPhue Ward, Ha Dong District, Hanoi City,

Operating indusiry and principal aciivities

- Construction of various types of buildings;

- Construction of other civil engineering works;

- Leasing machinery, equipment, and other tangible assets;

- Wholesale of construction materials and other installation eguipment,

- Architectural activities and related technical consulting,

Nermal production and business cycle

The Company's normal course of business cycle is no more than 12 months.
ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

The Company's fiscal year begins on 1 April and ends on 31 March of the next year.
The currency unit used in accounting period is Vietnam Dang (VND).

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEM APPLIED

The financial statements are expressed in Vistnamese Dong (VMND) and prepared under the accounting
principles in conformity with the Viethamese mrpgra = qrrmnting system issued in pursuance of

T o Bl nnﬁiﬁn-‘ ALTT TVTF o < O AP R -f.l ..... I4_ll.. CRIONAAFTT DT f_d . A AL
St Rab ARG b AW L T TR L A REATA £ l—"'T.—' PRI RN Sl Lt—l P ,\.-JI Pl ol Wi, wion S A 0§ T e bR S | e

2016 of Ministry of Finance, Vietnamese Accounting Standards, and the relevant statutory requ:rern ents
applicable to financial reporting.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies, which have been adopted by the Campany In the preparation of
these financial statements, are as follows:

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared an the accrual basis (excest for the information related {o cash
fiows), under historical cost principle, based on the assumption of going concern.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with Vielnamese accounting standards, the
Vielmamese corporate accounting system, and the relevant siatulory reguirements applicable to
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financial reporting requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liahiliies, and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial staiements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. The actual
number incurred may differ from the estimates and assumptions.

4.3. Cash and cash equivalent

Cash reflects the full existing amount of the Company at the end of the accounting period, comprising
cash on hand, demand deposits and cash in transit.

Cash equivalents include short-term investments with maturity less than 03 months since the date of
investment, which can be converted easily into a certain amount of cash without any risk in conversion
inta cash at the reporting date and recorded following Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 24 - Cash
flow statement.

4.4. Held to maturity invesiment
invesments held to maturity

Reflecting the investments that the Company has intention and abllity to hold o maturity with remaining
maturity not exceeding 12 months (short-term} and more than 12 months {long-term) from the reporting
date (except trading securities), including time deposits (including treasury bills, promissory notes),
ponds, commercial papers, preference stocks which the issuer is obliged to buy at a certain time in the
future, held-to-maturity loans for the purpose of collecting periodic interest, other kinds of debt securities
(e.g. investment in buying bad debts, etc.) and other held-to-maturity investments, not including those
already presented in the items such as "cash equivalents”, "receivables from short-term borrowings”
and "receivables from long-term borrowings”.

Hald-to-maturity investments are initially recognized at cost, including purchase price and expenses
related to the purchase of investments such as brokerage fees, transaction, advisory, tax fees and bank
charges ... After initial recognition, these investments are recorded at recoverable value.

Interest incurred after the date of purchase of held-to-maturity investments, profit upon disposals or sale
of held-to-maturity investments are recorded in financial income. Interest received before the investment
date is deducted from the cost at the date of purchase.

The Company bases on the remaining term from the reporting date to classify held-to-maturity
investments as long-term or short-term.

When having strong evidence indicating part or all of the investments may not be recoverable and the
losses can be measured reliably, these iosses are recorded in financial expenses in the year and
reduced directly to the value of the investments. Provision for held-to-maturity investments Is similar to
receivables unlikely to recover, is made similarly to bad debis according to note MNo. 4.5,

investment in associales

This reflects investments in which the Company holds directly or indirectly from 20% to less than 50%
of the voting rights of the investee (associate company) without other contractual agreements.

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influsnce but does not have control
over its financial and operating policies. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control over those policies.

Equity investments in other entities are initially recognized at cost, which includes the purchase price or
capital contribution plus any directly attributable investment costs (if any), such as brokerage,
transaction, consulting, auditfees, levies, taxes, and bank charges, etc. In the case of investments made
using non-monetary assets, the cost of the investment is recognized at the fair value of the non-
monetary assets at the time of the transaction.

Dividends and profits from periods prior to the acquisition of the investment are accountad for as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends and profits from pericds after the

10
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acquisition date are recognized as financial incame &t their fair value on the date the right to receive
them arises. In the case of stock dividends, the Company only discloses the increase in the number of
shares in the notes to the financial statements and does not recognize an increase in the value of the
investment or financial income.

Provision for impairment losses on investments in joint ventures and associates is the excess of the
original cost over the Company's ownership proportion in the actual equity of the investee, recognized
in accordance with the prevailing enterprise accounting system.

| 4.5, Receivables and provision for douhtful debts

Receivables are monitored detailed under the original terms, remaining terms at the reporiing date, the
receivable objects, receivable foreign currencies and other factors for the Company's managemeni
purpose. The classification of receivables comprised of trade receivables, and cther receivables shall
comply with the principles;

- Trade receivables include commercial receivables incurred frém purchase-sale transacfions,
including receivables from sale of exported goods under the trust for other entities;

- Other receivables include non-commercial or non-trading receivables, including: receivables from
lozninterests, deposit interests, amount paid on behaif of ancther party; receivables which the export
trustor must collect from the trustee; receivables from penaliies, compensation; advances; pledges,
collaterals, deposits, assets lending. ..

The company bases on the remaining term at the reporting date receivabies to classify as long-term or
shori-term.

Receivables are recognized at no mare than their recoverable value. Provision for doubltful debts is
made in accordance with the prevailing enterprise accounting system,

4.6. Inventories

Inventories are staled at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises purchase price,
processing cost and other direct atiributable expenses that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all estimated costs to completion and costs to be incurred in marketing. sefling and distribution,
Inventories are determined using the weighted average method.

Waork in progress includes costs for construction activities that have not been completed and accepted
for payment at the end of the fiscal year. The value of work in progress is determined corresponding fo
the cost of direct materials; direct labor tosts; costs of using construction machinery; general production
costs and subcontracting costs incurred but not yet accepted by the investor.

The provision for the devaluation of inventories is the excess of the inventories' cost over their net
realizabie value al e accounling yezr snd a2nd mece n accordance wild prevaling corporate
accounting system.

4.7. Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assels are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Tangible fixed asssets ars
recognized under the historical cost.

The costs of tangible fixed assets arising from purchases and self-constructions comprise all costs of
bringing the tangible fixed assels to their working condition for their intended use. Fixed assels that are
formed as part of an investment project through bidding or self-construction and production are
represented by the final setttement price of the completed construciion works according to current
investment and construction management regulations, plus other directly related casts and registration
fees {if any). In cases where a project has been completad and put into use but the final settiement has
not been approved, the cost of the fixad asset is recorded at a provisionz! cost based on the actual
expenses incurred to obtain the fixed asset. The provisional cost will be adjusted according to the final
seiflement approved by the competent authotities.

11
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Costs incurred after initial recognition are recorded as increase in the historical cost of assets if they
actually improve the current status in comparison with the initial stendard status of that assets.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives in Z
accordance with Circular No. 45/2013/TT-BTC dated 25/04/2013 of the Ministry of Finance. The 14
estimaled useful lives are as follows: =

Years
Buildings and structures 25
Machinery and equipment 03-08
Transportation vehicles 05 - 09
iManagement device 03-05
Others D3-05

Loss or gain resulting from sales and disposals of tangible fixed assets is the diffirence between proceed
from sales or disposals of assets and their residual valuwes and is recognized in the income statement.

4.8. Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible fixed assets are presented at cost less accumulated amortization, reflecting the value of
computer software and the value of long-term land use rights. Computer software is initially recognized
at purchase cost and is amortized on a straighi-line basis over 5 years. The Company does not record
amortization for long-term land use rights.

4.9. Construction in progress

The construction in progress is recorded at cost, including expenses directly related to (including
borrowing costs by the Company's accounting policy) properties in the course of construction for
production, equipment installed for the purpose of manufacturing, rental and management as well as
related expenses to repairs of fixed assets. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
assets, commences when the assets are rzady for their intended use.

4.10. Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses include costs for tools and equipment used, repair costs for fixed assets, and other
prepaid expenses serving the production and business activities over multiple accounting periods.

Specifically:

- The value of tools and equipment used is allocated on a straight-line basis over a period of no more
than 3 years (long-term) and nc more than 1 year (shart-term);

- Costs for improving and repairing fixed assets are ailocated to the profit or loss account on a straight-
lina hasis over a period not exceeding 3 years.

The Company classifies prepaid expenses as either short-term or long-term based on the duration
specified in the contract or the allocation period of each type of cost and does not reclassify at the EE
reporting date. L

4.11. Payables

The payables are monitored detailed under the original terms, the remaining terms at the reporting date,
the payable objects, type of payables denominated in foreign currency and other factors according to
the Company's management purpese. The classification of payables such as trade payables, other
payables must be implemented the following principles:

- Trade payables include commercial payables incurred from purchase-sale transactions, including
payables when imported goods under the trust,

- Other payables include non-commaercial or non-trading payables, including: payables for loan
interest. dividend and eaming payables: payables for financial investments; amount paid for the third

12
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party; amount which the truster receives from relevant parties to pay under the entrusted import-
export ransactions,; asse! borrowings, payables for penaliies, compensation; surplus asssis without
reason, payables for social insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, trade union;
collaterals, depasits received, stc.

Wy

The company bases on the remaining terms of payables at the reporting date to classify as long-term or
short-term,

The payables are recorded not less than the payment obligations. In the case of there is evidence that
a loss likely occurs, the Company recognizes immediately a payable under the prudent principle.

4.12. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses are amounts owed for goods and services received from sellers or provided by
buyers within the year but not yet paid, as well as other costs such as interest expenses payable, which
are recognized as production and business expenses in the year incurrad.

Recognition of accrued expenses as part of prodiction and business expenses is carried out according
to the principle of matching revenues with expenses incurred within the year. The acerued expensas will
be settled against actual incurred costs. The difference between the estimated amounts and actual
expenses s recognized as an addition or reversal in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

4.13. Provisions
Provisions are recognized only when all of the following conditions are met;

- The Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
- ltis probable that an ouiflow of économic benefits will be required to seitle the obligation: and
- Areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

rovisians are recognized based on the best estimate of the expenditure reguirad to settle the present
obligation as of the end of the reporting period.

4.14. Loans and finance lease liabilities

The loans and finance lease liabilities are monitored detalled for each loan object, loan agreement, and
loan asset; for the term of loan and finance lease liabilities and type of foreign currency (if any). The
loans and finance lease liabilities with the remaining term more than 12 months from the reporting date
are presented as long-term loans and finance lease liabilities. The due leans and finance lease liabilities
within the next 12 months from the reporting date are presented as short-term loans and finance lease
liabilifies.

415, Borrowing cosls
Borrowing costs include interests and other costs incurred directly related to the loans.

Borrowing costis charged to operating expenses during the period when incurred, except for borrowing
costs directly attributable to the construction or production of gualifying assets with appropriate time
{more than 12 months) to put into use for the intended purposes or sales, which recordad in the value
of capitalized assels whether it is subject to the fulfiliment of certain conditions of Viethamese
Accounting Standard Mo, 16 - Borrowing cost. Borrowing costs directly attributable {o the construction
of fived assets investment properties can be capitalized even though the censtruction is tess than 12
months,

4.16. Revenue recognition

Revernug from the sale of goods shall be recognized If it simultaneously meets the folowing
conditions:

{a) The Company has transferred the majority of risks and benefits associatad with the right to own
the preducts or goods to the buyer;

13
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(b) The Company ric longer holds the right to manage the goods as the goods owner, or the right to
control the goods;

(c) revenue has been determined with relative certainty. When contracts define that buyers are
entitied to return products, goods purchased under specific conditions, the Company shall only
record turnovers if such specific conditions no longer exist and buyers are not entitled to return
products, goods {unless the customer is entitled to return the goods under the form of exchange
for other goods or services),

(d} The Company has gained or will gain economic benefits from the good sale transaction; and
(8) Itis possible to determine the costs related to the goods sale transaction.

Revenue recognition from services rendered if simultaneously satisfying the following
conditions:

(8) Revenue is measured reliably. When the contracts define that the customers are entitled to return
service purchased under specific conditions, the Company shall only record revenue if such
specific conditions do not exist and the customers are not entitled to retum services provided;

{b)  The Company received or will receive economic bensfits from the sale transactions;

(¢) The completed work is determined at the reporting date; and

(d)  Incurred costs for the transaction and the costs to complefe the transaction of providing such
services is defermined,

Consiruction Coniracis

Construction contracts stipulate that the contractor is to be paid based on the value of the completed
work. When the results of the construction contract can be reliably determined and are confirmed by the
customer, both the revenue and costs related to the contract are recognized according to the portion of
work completed and confirmed by the customer during the period reflected on the issued invoice.

When the results of the construction contract cannot be reliably estimated, then:

- Revenue is recognized equivalent fo the costs incurred for the contract that are relatively certain to be
recoverad,

- The costs of the contract are recognized as expenses when incurred.

The difference between the total recognized cumulative revenue of the construction contract and the
cumulative amounts billed according to the planned progress of the contract is recognized as receivable
or payable according to the planned progress of the construction coniracts.

Revenue from financial activities includes: comprises deposit interest, profit from bond investment,
profit from financial investment cooperation contract, discounted payments, gains from foreign exchange
differences and others (if any).

Interest on deposits is recognized on an accrual basis, determined based on the balances of deposit
accounts, and appliad interest rates as notified by the bank.

Other income refiects income arising from the events or separate transactions with normal business
operations of the Company, besides the above revenue.

417, Taxation
Corporate income tax represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable

or deductible in other years (including loss carried forward, if any) and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible.

14
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4.18.

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amaunts of assets and labilities and #s
tax base in the financial statements and is recognized using the balance shaet method. Deferrad tax
liability should be recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and dsferred tax asset shall be
recognized when it is probable that taxable profit will be available against so that temporary differences
are deduciible.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the liability is
setiled or the assel realized. Deferred tax is recognized in the income statement, and recognized in the
equity only when it refates to items charged or cradited directly to equity.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when the campany has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and when the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the Company intends to setlle iis
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The determination of the taxes borne by the Corporation is based on the current interpratation of tax
regulations. However, these regulalions are subject to periodic variation and their uliimate determination
depends on the results of the tax authorities’ examinations.

Other taxes are paid in accordance with the prevailing tax laws in Vietnam.
Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition

Financial Assets

According to Circular No. 210/2009/TT-BTC dated November 6, 2009, issued by the Ministry of Finance,
financial assets are classified appropriately for disclosure in the financial statements, including financial
assets recognized at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments, and available-for-sale financial assets. The Company determines the classification of these
financial assets at the time of initial recognition.

At the time of initial recognition, financial assets are determined at cost plus any directly attributable
transaction costs related to the purchase of the financial asset. The Company’s financial assets includa
cash and cash equivalents, trading securities, held-to-maturity investments, accounts receivable, loans
receivable, and other receivables.

Financial Liabilities

According to Circular No. 210/2009/TT-BTC dated November 8, 2008, issued by the Ministry of Finance,
financial liahilities are classified anpmpmtply for ‘t:tinswe in the ﬁ'aa'ma! statements, mc[udmg
iinancial habilites iuuuxlllc«h\.ﬂ- at fale valus th ul..a:,l ?ﬂgﬁ. or loss and Tinancial iabiiies determined ai
amortized cost. The Company determines the classification of these financial liabilities at the time of
initial recognition.

At the time of initial recegnition, financial lisbilities are determined at cost plus any directly attributable
transaction costs related to the issuance of that financial liability. The Company’s financial liabilities
include accounts payable, accrued expenses, other pavables, loans, and finance leases,

Subseguent Measurament

The value of financial instruments after initial recognition is reflected at fairvalue. [f there are no requlations
cn re-svaluating the fair value of financizal instruments, they are presented at their carrying amounts.

Offsetting Financial Insfruments

Financial assets and financiai liabilittes are offset, and the net value is presented on the balance sheet
only i the Company has the legal right io offset the recognized amounts and intends 1o setile on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and setile the liability simultanecusly.
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The Company has not presented disclosures related to financial insiruments at the end of the accounting
period, as Circular No. 210 and current regulations do not provide specific guidance on determining the
fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities.

4.19. Related parties

The parties are regarded as related parties of the Company if they have the ability to control or exercise
significant influence over the Company in making financial and operating. The Company's related parties
include:

- Enterprises that directly or indirectly control the Company or are controlled by the Company, or are
under common conirol with the Company, including parent companies, subsidiaries, and associated
comparies;

- Individuals who directly or indirectly have voting rights at the Company and exert significant influence
over the Company, including key management personnel of the Company and close family members
of these individuals;

- Enterprises that are controlled directly or indirectly by the individuals mentioned above, who hold a
significant portion of voting rights or exert significant influence aver these enterprises.

tn reviewing each relationship of related parties for the preparation and presentation of financial
statements, the Company focuses on the nature of the relationship rather than the legal form of those
relationships.

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31/03/2025 0110412024

YND WRID

Cash on hand 2,484 584 563 1,560,606,611
Cash al bank 255,070,278,637 95,627,342,053
Total 257,554 863,200 97,187,948,664

6. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

3110312025 01/0472024
VND VND
Short-term 53,000,000,000 204,186,6986,521
Deposit (i) 53,000,000,000 64,000,000,000
Bond - 140,186,696,521
Long-term 30,000,000,000 30,000,000,000
Bond (ii) 30,000,000,000 30,000,000,000
Total 83,000,000,000 234,186,698,521
(i These are term deposits with maturities from € to 12 months at commercial banks, bearing interest rates
ranging from 2.9% to 4.9% per annum. As of March 31, 2025, the entire balance of the deposit coniracts
was used as coilatera! for loans at banks, as detailed in Note 20
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(i) Long-term bond investments, detailed as follows:

Bond

Bond Code —

issue Date J1G3M2025  Interest

YND

Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Indusiry and Trade

CTG20307T2.01  30/07/2020 10 years 5,000,000,000 Reference interest rate + 1% per annum
CTsE213172 18/11/2021 10 years 15,000,000,000 Reference interest rate + 1% per annum
CTG223272.02 01/11/2023 10 years 10,000,000,000 Reference interest rate + 1,3% per annum
Tatal 30,000,000,000

The above-mentioned long-term bonds are used as collateral for a2 loan at Vietnam Jeint Stock
Commercial Bank for Indusiry and Trade.

{ INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

31f03r2025 01/04/2024
Historical cost Provision  Historical cost  Provision
WND VND V¥ND VND

CDCLeasing Investment JSC
(renamed to SIL Leasing Joint Stock
Company)

66,500,000,000 " . .

Total 66,500,000,000 " " ;

The Company contributed capital to CDCleasing Investment Joint Stock Company (renamead to SIL
Leasing Joint Stock Company) with the amount of VND 66,50C, 000,000, equivalent to 6,650,000 shares,
representing 25% of the charter capital of this company. CDCLeasing Investment Joint Stock Company
was established on 15 November 2024, and operates in the fields of real estate business, warehouse,

factory, and office lgasing.

8. SHORT-TERM RECEIVABLES FROM CUSTOMERS

3110312025

0110412024

VMD
Huan Thuy Trade and Services JSC

Military Patracheminal 1SC

Dong Do Group JSC

AE&T Binh Duong Urban Development Investment JSC
Quang Trung Group J3C

Century Real Estate Investment And Development JSC

123,156,462,599
193 798 449,120
110,820,415,443
97,808 532,613
83,119,337,093
43,345,088 885

BIDGROUP J45C 18,628,625 290
CEM Invastment and Construction JSC 16,525, 335,586
Others 305,763,549,310

VND
151,758,993, 063

108 202 701 200
4,459,422 537
28,302,674,640
119,004,251,765
46,628,275.801
63,088,401,640
187,638,661,610

Total 930,896,095,548

727,103,472 665

In which: Receivables from related parties
{Details in Note 32)

13,067, 575,400

17




CDC CONSTRUCTION JOIN | STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TC THE FINMANCIAL STATEMENTS FORM BGS - DN
Thess notes are an integral part of and should ba read in conjunciion with the accompanying financial statements

8. SHORT-TERM ADYANCES TO SUPPLIERS

310312025 01/0472024
WND WND
Tin Phuc Viet Nam J5C 10,494 276,664 9,476,037,615

Hanoi Viethouse Construction JSC

CDC Mechanic and Eleclric JSC

Van Tuong Fire Protection and Comrnercial Co.,Ltd (*)
Others

10,556,184,620 .
79,338,294, 709 4,755,126,691

1,459,624,642 1,459 624,642
57,529,286,462 12,997,995 597

Total 108,378,667,097

29,339,294, 709

28,688,784,545

In which: Advances fo refaled pariies
(Details in Note 32)

4,755,126,691

(*); This is a prepayment to the Company to Van Tuong Trading and Fire Protection Co., Ltd. for the
execution of the fire protection works of the Xuan Thuy Complex Project, which includes a commercial
center, office space, conference service area, and rasidential units for sale. As of 31 March 2025, the
Company made a 100% provision for doubtful debts on this prepayment.

10, QTHER RECEIVABLES

31/03/2025 01/04/2024
Value Provision Value Provision
VND VND YRND VND
Accrued interest receivables 2,0688,745,891 - 4,144,892 451 ;=
Advances 1,388,740,624 - 764,269 414 -
Deposit 100,000,000 B 58,933,947 -
Others 291,485,052 - 146,510,448 -
Total 3,849,971,568 - 5,114,706,258 -
In which:
- Other receivables to refated parfies: 58,227,769 - 60,752,650 &
- Advances lo related parties: 5,486,000 - 64, 207,733 -
(Deiails in Note 32)
11. INVENTORIES
31103/2025 01/04/2024
Historical cost Provision Historical cost Provision
YND WD VND YND

Raw materials
Work in process
Merchandises

1,711,281,165
492 886,013,851
47 029,630,303

4,495,312,807
463,840,783,393
£0,954,501,965

Total

541,626,825,313

529,290,598,165

18




CDC CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK COMPANY

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying financial statements

12,

13,

Details of work in process by project:

Construction project for structural works and architectural
finishing of the high-rise block and adiacent area

{Mguyen Tuan)

3110312025

FORM 809 - DN

41/04/2024

VND
30,002,148,560

YD
111,104,917,886

Riverside Apartment Compiex Project - Han River, Da Nang

48,438 801,469

48,681,502,004

Construction Project of Structural Framework for the Mixed-

Use Complex of Commercial Center, Office, Conference,

and Residentiat for Sale - Xuzn Thuy

Thanh Xuan - Phuc Yen Project

38,686,924,235

42.828,414,121

 24.039,476.877

38,965,883 256

Building Complex Project: Office for Lease and Apartments

for Sale at 28A Pham Hung

128 852 547,646

35,764,307 083

Construction of Sami-Detached and Detached Villas -

Valley Park Residences Project

38,283,685,589

2,544 322 658

A&T Sky Garden Apartment Project

63,855,884,251

20,179 888 678

Others _

120,716,544,214

154,771,437,728

Total

PREPAID EXPENSES

Short-term
Tools and supplies
Others

Long-term

Tools and supplies
Cost of repairing
Others

Total

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

COsT
As at 010412024

As at 31/03/2025

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As at 01/04/2024

Amortisation

As at 3110372025

NET BOOK VALUE
Az at 01/04/2024

As at 310312025

Residual value of infangible fixed
assels morigaged for bank loans

492,886,013,851 463,840,783,393
3110312025 01/64/2024

VND VHND
298,938,871 241,780,254
97,551,380 86,948,989
201,387,481 154,831 265

15,392,740,878
12,620,162,301
2,713,323,037
58,255 541

16,761,680,802
16,381,922 770
293,992 428
85,765,604

15,691,678,750

17,003,461,058

Land use rights Computer softwares Total
VD VNG YD
8,215,888,759 400,000,000  8,615,898,759
8,215,898,759 400,000,000  8,615,898,753

- 181,333,343 191,333,343

- 80,000,004 80,000,004

E 271,333,247 271,333,347

§,215,898,759 208,666,657  8,424,56541%
8,215,888,759 128,666,653  8,344,565,412

8,215,898 759

8,215,808, 7508
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CDC CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANC AL STATEMENTS
These nates are an infegral part of and should be read in conjunction wiih the accompanying financial statemerts

186.

17.

18.

8.

ADVANCE FROM CUSTOMERS

31032025

FORM B(G2 - DN

01/04/2024

Auan Loc Tho Co.,Ltd

HQC Service & Trade JSC

{formerly Kien Hung Service JSC)

A&T Binh Duong Urbian Development Investment JSC

Dong Da Investment and Development JSC

Thang Long Construction And Investment Development JSC
Thanh Xuan J5C

Phenikaa University

Others

YND

16,869,903 442
2,403,453,643

136,585,006,009
68,359,807,333
153,053,992,926
36,799,985,047
26,380,455,658
79,686,570,092

WYND

52,135,166,778
45,507,145,650

26,705,580,785

20,155,283,096
11,810,035,080

129,779 5661,048

Total

In which: Advance from relaied parfies
(Details in Nofe 32)

TAXES AND AMOUNTS PAYABLE TO STATE BUDGET

520,239,174,150

296,002,783,337

7,088,723,200

¢ 0170412024 il dala Pald — 40ar2025
amount amount
YND VND WND YND
Value added tax 1,359,853, 874 2.153,802 970 3,247 959 118 265,903,728
Corporate income tax 5,169 123,227 11,113,030,682 11,358,148,831 4,924,005,078
Personal income tax 213,904,147 2,269.661 984 2,359,328,545 124,236,586
Others - 185,716,246 185,716,248 -
Cong 6,742,987,248 15,722,311,882 17,151,153,738  5,314,145,392
SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES
31/03/2025 01/04/2024
WIND VND
Construction project accrued expense 13,744,132,983 1,813,968 805
Accrued interest 374 624,682 351,415,350
Githers 374,882 974 523,305,824
Total 14,493,640,639 2,788,690,06%
In which: Accrued expense lo relaled parties - 75,466,664
{Details in Nofe 32)
OTHER PAYABLES
31/03/2025 010472024
WND VND
Trade union 450,472,119 880,484,000
[nsursnce 554 054 797 1,522.276,650
Dividends payable 1,690,000,000 1,690,000,000
Others 391,187,762 389,389,414
Total 3,585,684,676 4,482,150,064

fn wihich: Other payables fo related parlies
(Details in Note 32)

22
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CDC CONSTRUCTICN JOINT STOCH CONMPANY

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS
These noles are an iniegral parf of and shouid be read in confunction with the accompanying financis! statemants

22,

Owner's equity details:

FORM BOS - DM

39/03/2025 01/04/2024
Contributed capital Ratio Contributed capital Ratio
VND % VND Yo
CDC Holding Jeint Stock Company 75,000,000,000  18.63 75,000,000,000  21.43
Mr. Nguyen Tien Dat 96,430,000,000 23.96 96,430,000,000 27.55
Mr. Le Hong Linh 32,200,000,000 6.00 32,200,000,000 .20
Mr. Ngo Tan Long 32,200,000,000 8.00 32.200,000,000 9.20
Mr. Tran Van Truong 32,200,G00,000 §.00 17,500,000,000 5.00
Ms. Dang Thanh Trang 32,200,000,000 8.00 17,500,000,000 5.00
Mr. Le Van Quang 17,500.000,000 4,35 17,500,000,000 5.00
Others 84,770,000,000  21.086 61,670,000,000 17.62
Céng 402,500,000,000 100 350,000,000,000 100

Capital tfransactions with owners and distribution of dividends and profits:

Owner's equity

- Opening balance

- Increase during the year

- Decrease during the year

- Closing balance

Deciared dividend, earning

Shares:

From 01/04/2024 From 01/04/2023
fo 31/0372025 to 3110312024
VND VND

350,000,000,000

350,000,000,000

52,500,000,000 :

402,500,000,000
8,050,000,000

350,000,000,000
3,500,000,000

Authorised shares
issued shares

- Common shares
Outstanding shares
- Common shares

Par valug of an oulstanding share (VND/share}

REVENUE

Revenue from goods sold
Revenue from construction
Revenus from service renderad

Total

irn which: Revenue from related paitiss
{Details in Nole 32}

31102/2025 01/04/2024
40,250,000 35,000,000
40,250,000 35,000,000
40,250,000 35,000,000
40.250.000 35 000000
40,250,000 35,000,000

10,000 10,000

From 01/04/2024 From 0170472023
to 31/03/2025 to 31/03/2024
VND VND

534,655,221,121
1,649,190,861,158
5,218,287.500

321,858,291,532
1,486 707,483 322
4,748,402 685

2,189,074,368,779

1,813,312,178,538

457,004,000

27
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CDC CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK COMPANY

MOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjuriction with the accompanying financial stalements

23.

24.

25.

26.

27,

COST OF SALES

Cost of merchandise sold
Cost of construction
Cost of service renderad

Total

FINANCIAL INCOME

Bank interest, bond interest

Interest income fram late payments under the contract

Total

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Interest expense
Qthers

Total

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

iabor cost

Material and tools
Depraciation expense
Taxes, fees, and charges
Provision for doutbful debts
Outsourced expense
Others

Total

OTHER INCOME

Income from liguidation of fixed assets
Cthers

Total

28

FORM BGS - DN

From 01/04/2024 From 04/04/2023
to 31/03/2025 to 31/03/2024
VND YND

527,548,638,640
1,574,968, 782,446
1,926,658,577

319,548,554,022
1,420,354,044,055
2,023,486,3585

2,104,444,079,663

1,741,327,084,472

From 01/04/2024 From 01/04/2023
to 31/03/2025 fo 31/03/2024
VND VMND

19,408,164,261
7,905,448,595

28,077,287,053

27,314,612,856 29,077,287,053
From 01/04/2024 From 01/04/2023
to 31/03/2025 to 31/03/2024
VND VND
16,950,436,325 25,243 369,485
63,988,010 155,565,462
17.014,424,335 25,398,534,947
From 01/04/2024 From 01/04/2023
to 31/03/2025 to 21/03/2024
VND VND

25,093 757,238 23.290,981,479
1,057,.880,328 1,341 744,927

6 137,087,754 5522,758,043
9,077,988 28,027,261

1,450,624,642
5,366,484,354
1,866,262,979

5,922,141, 346
1,979,861, 762

41,990,175,283

38,085,615,718

From 01/04/2024 From 01/04/2023
to 31/03/2025 to 21/03/2024
VND VND

8,400,000 "

728,173,972

130,202,685

736,573,972

130,202,699
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CDC CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS
These notes are an infegral part of and should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying financial statemsnis

28,

25

30,

L

OTHER EXPENSES

Fines, late payment
Othets

Total

PRODUCTION AND OPERATING COSTS BY NATURE

Material and consumables cost
Labor cost

Depreciation expense
Outsourced expense

Cthers

Total

CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Accounting profit before CIT
Adjustment for faxable income
- Add: Undeductible expense

Taxable income
Tax rate

Total current corporate income tax expenses

EARNING PER SHARE

Profit allocated to holders of ordinary shares
Welfare and bonus fund (%)

Profit used fo calculate basic sarning per share
Weighted average number of common shares during the year

Earning per share

FORM B0S - DN

From 01/04/2024 From 01/04/2023
to 31/03/2025 to 31/03/2024
UND VND

258,234, 329 296,064,197 -
17,114,342 187,346,441
275,348,641 483,410,838
Tiv 01/04/2024 T 0110472023
dén 31/03/2025 dén 31/03/2024
VND VND
760,582,105 653 349,230,268,038

77,949,590,115
8,015,938,945
790,493, 167,574
10,903,804,477

68,065,700,538
7,450 449 429
993 740,376,471
11,768,992,552

1,847 944 606,784

1,430,264,787.028

From 01/04/2024 From 01/04/2023
to 31/03/2025 to 31/03/2024
VND VND

53,401,528,685
2,163,624,723
2,163,624,723

36,624,622,516
1,720,993,621
1,720,893,621

£5,565,153,408

38,345,616,137

20%

20%

11,113,030,882

7,6869,123,227

From 01/04/2024 From 01/04/2023
to 31/03/2025 to 31/03/2024
VHND YND

42,288,498,003
(868,664,979)
41,419,833,024
39,430,137

28.955,499,289
(1,145,180,969)
27,810,318,320

35,000,000

1,060

795

(") The Company excludes the amount of bonus and welfare fund deductions according to the
Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Sharsholders at the fime the fransaction ccours.
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CDC GONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK COMPANY -

MOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORM BOS - DN
These noles are an infegral part of and should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying finencial statements

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Beside members of the Board of Directors and the Managsment, the Company has the following related

parties:
Related parties Relationship
CDC Holding Joint Stock Company Major sharehalder with shared members on the Board
of Directors
Mr. Mguyen Tien Dat Major shareholder
CDClLeasing Investment Joint Stock Company Association company

(renamed to SIL Leasing Joint Stock Company)

COC Mechanic and Electric Joint Stock Company Mr. Tran Van Truong is the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of this company

COC Nha Trang Investment Joint Stock Company Having the same members of the Board of Direciors

CDC Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company  Mr. Ngo Tan Long is the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of this company

HT! Investment and Trading Limited Company Mr. Le Van Quang is the owner of this company

Binh Thuan Plastic Group Joint Stock Company Mr. Le Van Quang is the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of this company

Hanoi Viethouse Construction Joint Stock Company  No longer a related party as of May 6, 2024

M. Nguyen Van Tien . Mrs. Dang Thanh Trang's hushand

in addition to transactions and balances with related parties presented in other netes to the financial
statement, during the year the Company also had transactions with the related parties as follows:

Balances with related paries:

31/03/2025 04/04/2024
VND WND
Short-term advance from customers - 7.098,723,200
Hanoi Viethouse Construction JSC po longer a related party 7,098,723,200
Short-term other receivables - -
Short-term other receivabies 59,227,769 60,752,650
CDC Holding JSC 59,227,765 58,227,769
Mr. Ngo Tan Long . 1,524,881
Advances 5,486,000 64,207,733
Mr. Ngo Tan Long - - 6,237,800
Mr. Tran Van Truong - 37,229,830
Mr. Nguyen Khac Thinh - 20,740,103
Mr. Nguyen Huu Bang 5,466,000 -
Receivables from customers 13,067,575,400 =
: CDC Regl Estate Investment JSC 13,067 575,400 -
- - Short-term other payables 1,690,000,000 1,690,000,000
= CDC Holding JSC 1,690,000,000 1,690,000,000
' : Short-term accrued expense - 75,466,664
' Hanoi Viethouse Construction JSC Mo lenger a related party 75,466,664
o Short-term loans - 54,235,521,962
Mr. Mai Dink Chat - 21,500,000,000 2
Mir. Nguyen Khac Thinh . 17,235,521,962 :
. Ms. Dang Thanh Trang - 15,500,000,000
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CDC CONSTRUGTION JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMERNTS FORM B0Y - DN
These noles are an integral part of and should be read in conjunciion with the accompanying financial stafements

Balances with related paries (continued):

Trade accounts payable
Shert-term trade aceounts payable
COC Mechanic and Electric JSC
Hanol Viethouse Construction JSC (*)
Long-term trade accounts payable
CDC Mechanic and Electric J5SC
Hanaoi Viethouse Consiruction JSC (%)

Short-term advances to suppliers
CDC Mechanic and Electric JSC

Transactions with related parties:

Receiving capital contribution
ks, Tran Van Truong

Ms. Dang Thanh Trang

Mr. Ngo Quy Nham

Mr. Mai Dinh Chat

Mr. Nguyen Khac Thinh

Mr. Nguyen Van Tien

Proceeds from borrowings

Mr. Mai Dinh Chat

is. Dang Thanh Trang

Mr. MNguyen Khac Thinh

hr. Hoang Ngoc Tuan {Deputy General Director -
Resigned on 01/08/2023)

Repayment of borrowings

Iir. Ngo Tan Long

Mr. Mai Dinh Chat

Ms. Dang Thanh Irang

Mr. Nguyen Khac Thinh

Mr. Hoang Ngoc Tuan (Deputy General Director -
Resigned on 01/02/2023)

Advances

Mr. Nge Tan Long
Mr. Tran Van Truong
Mr. Nguyen Huu Bang

Settiement of advances
Mr. Ngo Tan Long
Mr. Tran Van Truong

31

31032025 0110472024
VND VND
30,667,366.560 56,432,371,185

28,738,164, 743
26,739,164 743

No longer a related party
928,201,817
928,201,817

No longer a related party

29,339,284,708
29,339,294, 709

From 01/04/2024
io 31/0G3/2025

50,771,767,370
30,810,848, 144
19,960,919,226

5,660,603,815

5.660,603,815

4,755,126,691
4,755,126,691

From 01/04/2023
to 31103/2024

VND

47,250,000,000
19,845,000,000
19,845,000,000
675,000,000
2,767,500,000
2,767,500,000
1,350,000,000

§4,235,521,962
21,500,000,000
15,500,000,000
17,235,521,962

5,485,000

5,488,000

43,467,630
6,237,800
37,228,830

VIND

121,500,000,000
45,000,000,000
41,000,000,000
30,500,000,000
5,000,000,000

100,764,478,038
25,500,000,000
£3,500,000,000
25,200,000,000
21,284 478,038
5,000,000,000

218,069,679
78,789,829
139,275,880

239,358,537
137,308,517
102,050,020




COC CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK COMPANY

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORM BO% - DN
These notes are an infegrat part of and should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying financial statements

Transactions with related parfies (continued):

Dividend declaration
Mr. Mguyen Tien Dat
CDC Holding JSC

Mr. Ngo Tan Long

Ms. Dang Thanh Trang
Mr. Le Van Quang

Mr. Tran Van Truong

Mr. Mai Dinh Chat

Mr. Nguyen Khac Thinh
Mr. Hoang Ngoc Tuan (Deputy General Director -
Resigned on 01/09/2023)
Mr. Nguyen Van Tien

Dividend payment during the year
Mr. Nguyen Tien Dat

CDC Holding JSC

Mr, MNgo Tan Long

iMs. Dang Thanh Trang

Mr. Le Van Quang

br. Tran Van Truong

Mr. Mai Dinh Chat

Mr. Nguyen Khac Thinh

Mr. Hoang Ngoc Tuan (Deputy General Director -
Resigned on 01/09/2023)

ir. Nguyen Yan Tien

Revenue from sale of goods and provision of
services
Hanoi Viethouse Construction J8C (%)

Purchase of goods and services
Hanoi Viethouse Construction JSC (%)
CDC Mechanic and Eleciric JSC

From 01/04/2024

From 01/04/2023

to 31/03/2025 to 31/05/2024
VND VND
6,032,800,000 2,754, 400,000

1.628,600,000
1,500,000,000
644,000,000
44,000,000
350,000,000
644,000,000
161,000,000
161,000,000

£0,000,000

6,032,600,000
1,928,600,000
1,500,000,000
544,000,000
644,000,000
350,000,000
644,000,000
161,000,000
161,000,000

60,000,000
457,004,000

457 004,000
34,770,447,524

44,770,447 524

1,014,300,000
750,000,000
350,000,000
175,000,000
175,000,000
175,000,000
50,000,000
50,000,000
15,100,000

2,154,400,000
1,014,300,000
150,000,000
350,000,000
175,000,000
175,000,000
175,000,000
50,000,000
50,000,000
15,100,000

4,668,120,000

4,668,120,000
314,999,294,438
250,716,798,132
64,282 496,306

(*) Transactions with Viethouse Hanoi Construction Joint Stock Company are calculated from April 1,

2024 to the time when it is no longer a related party.
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CDC CONSTRUGCTION JOINT STOCK COMPANY

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ihiese notes are an infegral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accomparnying financial stafemants

33.

34.

35,

Remuneration of the Board of Directors and Management

Mame

Mr, Ngo Tan Long
Mr. Tran Van Truong

Ms. Dang Thanh Trang

Mr. Mai Dinh Chat
Mr. Nguyen Knac Thinh
Wir. Hoang Mgoc Tuan

Mr. Mguyen Van Linh

Mr. Nguyen Huu Bang

Total

OTHER INFORMATION

Fosition

Chairman

Vice chairman (Appointed on

03/06/2024)

General Director (Resigned on

03/06/2024)
Member of the board

General Director (Appointed on
(3/06/2024); Daputy General
Director {Resigned on 03/06/2024)

Deputy General Director
Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director (Resigned

an 01/09/2023)

Deputy General Director (Appointed

on 11/07/2024)

Deputy General Director (Appoeinted
on 16/09/2024, Resigned on

24106/2025)

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board

Total

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

FORM BOS - DN

From 01/04/2024 From 01/04/2023
to 31/03/2025 to 31/03/2024
VND VND
830,980,000 808,260,000
847 480,000 824,411,000
850, 355,000 809,510,000
680,980,000 §77.628.800
680,980,000 677,628,800
" 193,087,692

508,620,056 .
504,625,000 .

4,804,020,056

3,990,536,292

From 01/04/2024
to 31/03/2025

From 01/04/2023
to 31/03/2024

WND

VIND

No significant events occurring after balance sheet date affecting the financial position and operations
of the Company that reauires adiustments or disclosures on the financial statements for the fiscal vear

ended 31/03/2025.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figures are the figures eon the audited financial siatements for the fiscal year end};e"(_i

31/03/2024.

Preparer

g

Ha Noi, 24 June jéOEE

Nguyen Thi Hong Khung

Mguyen Thi Thuy
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